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UNIVERSITY OF LOUISVILLE

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Federal Grant or Program Title

STUDENT FINANCIAL AID CLUSTER

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

Federal Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grants
Federal Work Study Program

Federal Perkins Loan Program

Federal Pell Grant Program

William D. Ford Federal Direct Loan Program

Teacher Education Assistance for College and Higher Education Grants (TEACH Grants)

SUBTOTAL UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
Health Professions Student Loans, Including Primary Care Loans
and Loans for Disadvantaged Students

Nursing Student Loans

SUBTOTAL DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

TOTAL STUDENT FINANCIAL AID CLUSTER

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT CLUSTER

DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE
Agricultural Research —Basic and Applied Research

SUBTOTAL DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE

DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE
ARRA — Measurements and Engineering Research and Standards

SUBTOTAL DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE

DEPARTMENT OF DEFENSE

Department of Defense Contracts
Through Christopher & Dana Reeve Foundation
Through Confidential
Through Jewish Hospital
Through Metabiota, Inc.
Through Mound Laser & Photonics Center, Inc.
Through Spectral Sciences, Inc.
Through Techshot, Inc.
Through Texas Research Institute Austin, Inc.
Basic and Applied Scientific Research

Basic Scientific Research — Combating Weapons of Mass Destruction through Southern Research I nstitute

Military Medical Research and Development
Through Christine Kleinert Institute
Through Christopher & Dana Reeve Foundation
Through Jewish Hospital

Pass Through Fiscal 2014

CFDA # Entity # Expenditures
84.007 $ 612,973
84.033 731,543
84.038 9,854,860
84.063 19,269,169
84.268 139,998,979
84.379 178,088
170,645,612
93.342 8,357,548
93.364 176,391
8,533,939
179,179,551
10.001 30,820
30,820
11.609 570,819
570,819
12.000 SP4701-10-C-0034 478,955
12.000 NOA3-2010(SH) 3,596
12.000 Federal Contractor 746,750
12.000 W81XWH-09-2-0124 (558)
12.000 COLLABORATIVE BIOLOG 16,224
12.000 FA8650-13-M-5060,C-5021 176,916
12.000 Multiple 38,254
12.000 W81XWH-11-C-0017 58,161
12.000 N112-153 99,356
12.300 133,359
12.351 Multiple 286
12.420 2,014,920
12.420 W81XWH-13-2-0057 58,235
12.420 Multiple 229,222
12.420 W81XWH-07-1-0185 (363)

See notes to the schedule of expenditures of federal awards



UNIVERSITY OF LOUISVILLE

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 (CONTINUED)

Federal Grant or Program Title

Through National Stem Cell Foundation
Through Owensboro Medical Health System
Through University of Florida
Through University of Pittsburgh
Basic Scientific Research
Through University of Florida Research Foundation
Basic, Applied, and Advanced Research in Science and Engineering
Through Academie of Applied Science
Air Force Defense Research Sciences Program
Through Spectral Sciences, Inc.
Through UES, Inc.
Through Universal Technology Corporation
Research and Technology Development through Scientific Technology Systems, Inc.

SUBTOTAL DEPARTMENT OF DEFENSE

DEPARTMENT OF INTERIOR

Department of Interior Contracts
Conservation Grants Private Stewardship for Imperiled Species

SUBTOTAL DEPARTMENT OF INTERIOR

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

Legal Assistance for Victims through Lega Aid Society, Inc.
Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention - Allocation to States through State of Kentucky
National Institute of Justice Research, Evaluation, and Development Project Grants

Through University of Kentucky Research Foundation
Juvenile Mentoring Program
Criminal and Juvenile Justice and Mental Health Collaboration Program through State of Kentucky
Congressionally Recommended Awards

SUBTOTAL DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

Aviation Research Grants

Highway Research and Development Program through Health Effects Ingtitute, Inc.

Metropolitan Transportation Planning and State and Non-Metropolitan Planning and Research
Through University of Kentucky Research Foundation

University Transportation Centers Program through Marshall University Research Corporation

SUBTOTAL DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

NATIONAL AERONAUTICS AND SPACE ADMINISTRATION

NASA Contracts

Through Oregon State University

Through Space Telescope Science Institute

Through University of Kentucky Research Foundation
Education through University of Kentucky Research Foundation

SUBTOTAL NATIONAL AERONAUTICS AND SPACE ADMINISTRATION

Pass Through Fiscal 2014

CFDA # Entity # Expenditures
12.420 W81XWH-10-1-0688 16,236
12.420 W81XWH-10-2-0082 180,719
12.420 UF11142 15,640
12.420 0027150 (408007-2) 152,516
12431 305,321
12.431 UF-EIES-0914001-ULR (13,550)
12.630 AAS Jr Science Sympo 4,898
12.800 FA9453-13-M-0055 30,476
12.800 FA8650-09-D-5037 001 9,138
12.800 13-T5690-09-C1 12,101
12.910 DARPA-BAA-12-38 97,481
4,864,289
15.000 16,037
15.632 54,639
70,676
16.524 2010-wl-ax-0050 43,822
16.540 2009-JF-FX-0044 66,261
16.560 3048109943-13-154 56,066
16.726 56,908
16.745 PON2 02510000007772 (207)
16.753 62,225
285,075
20.108 18,666
20.200 8006-09-3-2 7,131
20.505 3049025158-14-052 31,531
20.701 RC-P1300354 220,376
277,704
43.000 NS224A-A 57,520
43.000 Multiple 4,079
43.000 Multiple 54,901
43.008 3048110296-13-192 205,936
322,436

See notes to the schedule of expenditures of federal awards
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UNIVERSITY OF LOUISVILLE

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 (CONTINUED)

Federal Grant or Program Title

NATIONAL SCIENCE FOUNDATION

National Science Foundation Contracts
Through Western Kentucky University
Through University of Kentucky Research Foundation
Engineering Grants
Through NaugaNeedles, LLC
Mathematical and Physical Sciences
Through Wayne State University
Geosciences
Computer and Information Science and Engineering
Biologica Sciences
Through Marquette University
Social, Behavioral, and Economic Sciences
Education and Human Resources
Through University of Kentucky Research Foundation
Office of Experimental Program to Stimulate Competitive Research
Through University of Kentucky Research Foundation
ARRA — Trans-NSF Recovery Act Research Support
Through University of Kentucky Research Foundation — ARRA

SUBTOTAL NATIONAL SCIENCE FOUNDATION

DEPARTMENT OF VETERANS AFFAIRS
Sharing Specialized Medical Resources

SUBTOTAL DEPARTMENT OF VERTERANS AFFAIRS

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY

Surveys, Studies, Investigations, Demonstrations and Training Grants and Cooperative Agreements

(Sec 104 (3)(b)) of the Clean Water Act
Through Tetra Tech, Inc.

Nonpoint Source mplementation Grants
Through Cumberland Valley Resource Conservation
Through Pulaski County Conservation District
Through State of Kentucky

Regional Wetland Program Development Grants
Through State of Kentucky

SUBTOTAL ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY

DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

Department of Energy Contracts
Basic Energy Sciences
Through Apig Semiconductor, LLC
Through University of Kentucky Research Foundation

Advanced Research and Projects Agency — Energy Financia Assistance Program

Through Gas Technology Institute

SUBTOTAL DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

Pass Through Fiscal 2014
CFDA # Entity # Expenditures

47.000 BCS-1230062 4,000
47.000 WK URF 596855-08-03 (3,441)
47.000 UKRF3048107645-14-09 15,357
47.041 964,685
47.041 SBIRII 11P-1058576 3
47.049 548,790
47.049 DMS-1312603 8,120
47.050 32,265
47.070 19,877
47.074 812,074
47.074 NSF MCB-0951110 14,859
47.075 159,314
47.076 1,351,001
47.076 Multiple 1,978
47.081 3048108525-12-379,380 306,631
47.082 3048106819-10-085 210,372
4,445,885

64.018 730,903
730,903

66.436 LOPC Grnt #964597060 9,113
66.460 Sinking Creek Water 126,890
66.460 Brushy Creek Sediment 121,520
66.460 Multiple 84,391
66.461 73,964
66.461 PON2129 1200002095 1 2,874
418,752

81.000 47,433
81.049 112,044
81.049 WindPowerWBG SBIR 46,119
81.049 3048103802-12-391 375,233
81.135 $439 48,197
629,026

See notes to the schedule of expenditures of federal awards
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UNIVERSITY OF LOUISVILLE

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 (CONTINUED)

Pass Through Fiscal 2014
Federal Grant or Program Title CFDA # Entity # Expenditures
DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
National Institute on Disability and Rehabilitation Research 84.133 486,911
Through Criterion Health, Inc. 84.133 H1335100082 11,216
Education Research, Development and Dissemination 84.305 351,928
Through Development Services Group, Inc. 84.305 Sub#DSG UL 2012-13 103,984
Research in Specia Education 84.324 8,485
SUBTOTAL DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION 962,524
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
Department of Health and Human Services Contracts 93.000 770,127
Through American College of Radiology 93.000 RTOG 0631 123
Through Children's Hospital of Philadelphia 93.000 Multiple 5,020
Through Corixa Corporation 93.000 Multiple 336,015
Through Duke Clinical Research Institute 93.000 Multiple 49,262
Through Hemophilia Group of Georgia 93.000 6 H30M C24046-02-02 6,826
Through Methodist Hospital Research Group 93.000 18020002-071 12,664
Through Noveratech, LLC 93.000 REDUCING LAPAROTOMY 3,058
Through S.C. Liver Research Consortium 93.000 CTS-1027-05 1,434
Through University of Michigan 93.000 REVIVE-IT 13,670
Through University of Pittsburgh 93.000 SUB 0017924-3 (6,864)
Family Smoking Prevention and Tobacco Control Act Regulatory Research 93.077 403,440
Through National American Heart Association 93.077 Multiple 916,799
Prevention of Disease, Disability, and Death through |mmunization and
Control of Respiratory and Related Diseases 93.083 49,743
Biologica Response to Environmental Health Hazards 93.113 2,607,295
Oral Disease and Disorders Research 93.121 3,100,371
Through University of Akron 93.121 00840UL 3,348
Through University of Bristol 93.121 Multiple 115,254
Through University of Texas at Austin 93.121 UTA13-000775 53,028
Through University of Washington 93.121 722100 116,520
Human Genome Research
Through HudsonAlpha I nstitute for Biotechnology 93.172 1UM1HG0007301 12,018
Through University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill 93.172 5-31866 2
Research Related to Deafness and Communication Disorders 93.173 425,828
Through University of Virginia 93.173 GC11990-136407 185,238
Disabilities Prevention through Christopher & Dana Reeve Foundation 93.184 Multiple 944,689
Immunization Research, Demonstration, Public Information and Education
Training and Clinical Skills Improvement Projects 93.185 41,986
Research and Training in Complementary and Alternative Medicine 93.213 413,304
Through University of South Florida 93.213 TNO1 TYPE 1 DIABETES 2,233
Through Massachusetts General Hospital 93.213 5U01AT00061308 15,571
National Center on Sleep Disorders Research 93.233 272,087
Mental Health Research Grants 93.242 699,197
Occupational Safety and Health Research Grants 93.262 166,843
Alcohol Research Programs 93.273 1,711,105
Through EndoProtech, Inc. 93.273 1R43AA021331-01 3,855
Through Cleveland Clinic Lerner College of Medicine 93.273 347,432,435-SUB 270,812

See notes to the schedule of expenditures of federal awards
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UNIVERSITY OF LOUISVILLE

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 (CONTINUED)

Federal Grant or Program Title

Drug Abuse Research Programs
Through Ann & Robert H. Lurie Children's Hospital

Discovery and Applied Research for Technological Innovations to Improve Human Health

Through University of California, Los Angeles
Minority Health and Health Disparities Research
Trans-NIH Research Support

Through University of Kansas Medical Center

Through Vanderbilt University
Nursing Research

Through Johns Hopkins University

Through University of Kentucky Research Foundation
Research Infrastructure

Through Case Western Reserve University
Cancer Cause and Prevention Research

Through University of Massachusetts

Through Morehouse School of Medicine
Cancer Detection and Diagnosis Research
Cancer Treatment Research

Through Advanced Cancer Therapeutics

Through American College of Radiology

Through Beth Israel Deaconess Medical Center

Through CureSearch National Research Foundation, Inc.

Through Duke Clinical Research Institute

Through Indiana University — Purdue University

Through Radiation Therapy Oncology Group

Through Southwest Oncology Group

Through 3P Biotechnologies, Inc.

Through University of Michigan

Through University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill
Cancer Biology Research

Through University of Kentucky Research Foundation

Through University of Southern California
Cancer Centers Support Grants

Through Methodist Hospital Research Institute

Through University of Southern California
Cancer Research Manpower
ARRA - TRANS-NIH Recovery Act Research Support

Through Emmes Corporation, EPP (NCI) — ARRA

Through Duke Clinical Research Institute — ARRA

Through Georgetown University — ARRA

Through Social & Scientific Systems, Inc. — ARRA
ARRA - National Center for Research Resources, Recovery Act Construction Support
ARRA - Prevention and Wellness-State, Territories and Pacific Islands

Through State of Kentucky — ARRA
Heart and Vascular Diseases Research

Through Angiomics, Inc.

Through APK Advanced Medical Technologies Inc.

Through Heartware, Inc.

Through Indiana University

Through SC.R,, Inc.

Through University of Michigan

Through University of South Florida

Through University of Texas at Houston

Through University of Toledo

Through Wayne State University

See notes to the schedule of expenditures of federal awards
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Pass Through Fiscal 2014
CFDA # Entity # Expenditures
93.279 391,678
93.279 901474-Louisville 49,051
93.286 1RO1EB00761501A1 194,142
93.307 23,842
93.310 357,825
93.310 FY 2014-060 9,671
93.310 VUMC 42921 1,282
93.361 139,718
93.361 1R03NR012558-01 7,051
93.361 3048109238-13-196 1,138
93.389 609,920
93.389 3 UL1 RR024989-04S3 1,201
93.393 1,664,874
93.393 6114213/RFS900199 14,994
93.393 5R01CA166785-02 2,911
93.3%4 265,416
93.395 724,814
93.395 1R43CA165300-01A1 (1,427)
93.39%5 Multiple 22,424
93.395 01026208 19,551
93.39%5 Multiple (4,676)
93.395 ACOSOG 75031 1,394
93.39%5 Multiple 21,378
93.395 Multiple 1,335
93.39%5 Multiple 2,516
93.395 1R43CA162417-01A1 50,363
93.39%5 Multiple 76,166
93.395 5-50398 651
93.396 1,290,806
93.396 P01CA163223 90,001
93.396 45390120 3,389
93.397 18020002-0042 13,706
93.397 Multiple 63,236
93.398 23,760
93.701 129,257
93.701 1UO01INS026835-01A1 5,042
93.701 ARRA: RC2AR058934 (43,899)
93.701 RX 4335-029-UL (3,065)
93.701 ARRA, IRC-004 2,329
93.702 7,092,783
93723 PON272813000024468 1 864
93.837 8,897,978
93.837 1R41HL115849-01A1 20,591
93.837 1R44HL117426-01 215,688
93.837 1R43HL103014-01A1 300,267
93.837 IN4688149ULRF 70,989
93.837 2R44HL102981-02A1 278,918
93.837 UO01HL 094345 219
93.837 6382-1000-00-A 44,448
93.837 0008802Q 34,506
93.837 CORAL NS 2007-014 (638)
93.837 WSU10044 (64)



UNIVERSITY OF LOUISVILLE

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 (CONTINUED)

Federal Grant or Program Title

Lung Diseases Research

Through Children’s Hospital Boston

Through Duke University

Through Mayo Clinic

Through National Jewish Medical Research Center
Blood Diseases and Resources Research

Through CureSearch National Childhood Cancer Foundation

Through New England Research Institutes

Through Noveratech
Arthritis, Musculoskeletal and Skin Diseases Research

Through Cincinnati Children's Hospital Medical Center

Through Oklahoma Medical Research Foundation

Through University of Michigan

Through Washington University
Diabetes, Endocrinology, and Metabolism Research

Through ApoVax, Inc.

Through Medical College of Georgia

Through Nationwide Children's Hospital

Through Ohio State University

Through Regenerex, Inc.

Through Rush University Medical Center

Through Techshot

Through University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill

Through University of South Florida
Extramural Research Programs in the Neurosciences and Neurological Disorders

Through Cincinnati Children's Hospital Medical Center

Through Columbia University

Through New Jersey Medical School

Through University of Cincinnati

Through University of Minnesota

Through University of Texas at Houston

Through University of Washington
Allergy, Immunology and Transplantation Research

Through Massachusetts General Hospital

Through Medigen, Inc.

Through NeoStem, Inc.

Through Regenerex, Inc.

Through Washington University St. Louis Medical School
Microbiology and Infectious Diseases Research through University of Alabama Birmingham
Pharmacology, Physiology, and Biological Chemistry Research
Population Research
Center for Research for Mothers and Children

Through Ann & Robert Lurie Children's Memorial Hospital

Through Duke Clinical Research Institute

Through Minneapolis Medical Research Foundation

Through Oregon Research Institute
Aging Research

Through University of Utah
Vision Research — Retinal and Choroidal Diseases Research

Through Children's Hospital of Philadelphia

Through Cleveland Clinic Lerner College of Medicine

Through Johns Hopkins University

Through Stanford University

Through Yale University
Health Care and Other Facilities

SUBTOTAL DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

Pass Through Fiscal 2014
CFDA # Entity # Expenditures

93.838 267,346
93.838 1U01HL107681-02 32
93.838 7 RO1 HL064894-06 1,141
93.838 Multiple 17,865
93.838 2 P01 HLO036577-21A1 (10,405)
93.839 580,930
93.839 0501: UOL HL 69254 6,086
93.839 SCDCRN 3,150
93.839 1R43HL114235-01 -SUB 78,004
93.846 355,752
93.846 5P60AR047784-08 7
93.846 1 R01 AR055176-01A2 41,967
93.846 5P01AG010821-09 211
93.846 1 R01 AR055176-01A2 3,988
93.847 2,707,421
93.847 1R41DK081296-01A2 (1,800)
93.847 5 U24 DK076169-08 27,000
93.847 952613 33,462
93.847 60031090 155,017
93.847 2R42DK074331-03A2 302,841
93.847 1R01DK101350-01 37,712
93.847 2R44DK072647-04A1 41,734
93.847 5-32729 5,488
93.847 TN-07, ORAL INSULIN 63
93.853 1,982,498
93.853 SUBAWARD 109540 23,940
93.853 7 U01 NS043975-07 1,625
93.853 CREST TRIAL 99-705 555
93.853 U01-NS052220 921
93.853 ATACH-II 16,590
93.853 ICTuS 2/3 630
93.853 PENUT TRIAL 10,397
93.855 2,237,564
93.855 Subaward No. 219473 20,483
93.855 Multiple 123,506
93.855 1R43A1098325-01 165,554
93.855 1R41A1098336-01 77,265
93.855 Multiple 63,625
93.856 06-0046 465
93.859 8,129,047
93.864 454
93.865 653,859
93.865 Multiple 28,351
93.865 RSN-C PTN POPS 36
93.865 07212-1 2,892
93.865 First Step: Home/Sch 41,175
93.866 352,811
93.866 10020166-01 44,550
93.867 2,604,786
93.867 Multiple 12,409
93.867 227SUB 58,129
93.867 2001683744 53,208
93.867 23914230-41077-B 2,198
93.867 M14A11797(A09123) 14,054
93.887 647,667

58,928,537

See notes to the schedule of expenditures of federal awards
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UNIVERSITY OF LOUISVILLE

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 (CONTINUED)

Federal Grant or Program Title
DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY
Department of Homeland Security Contracts

Through National Institute for Hometown Security, Inc.

Through Murray State University
Through Western Kentucky University

SUBTOTAL DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY

TOTAL RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT CLUSTER

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CLUSTER

DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE
Economic Adjustment Assistance through State of Kentucky

SUBTOTAL DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE

TOTAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CLUSTER

HIGHWAY PLANNING AND CONSTRUCTION CLUSTER
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
Highway Training and Construction

Through State of Kentucky

SUBTOTAL DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

TOTAL HIGHWAY PLANNING AND CONSTRUCTION CLUSTER

SPECIAL EDUCATION (IDEA) CLUSTER

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
Special Education through State of Kentucky

SUBTOTAL DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

TOTAL SPECIAL EDUCATION (IDEA) CLUSTER

Pass Through Fiscal 2014
CFDA # Entity # Expenditures

97.000 Multiple 620,108
97.000 OSP#2010-096, Gantt (110)
97.000 556102-13-002 (3,133)
616,865

73,154,311

11.307 PONZ2 112 11000028651 31,660
31,660

31,660

20.205 PO2-628-1100004100 12,666
12,666

12,666

84.027 PON254013000025841 844,333
844,333

844,333

See notes to the schedule of expenditures of federal awards
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UNIVERSITY OF LOUISVILLE

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 (CONTINUED)

Federal Grant or Program Title
TRIO CLUSTER
DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
TRIO — Student Support Services
TRIO — Talent Search
TRIO — Upward Bound
Through Council for Opportunity in Education

SUBTOTAL DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

TOTAL TRIO CLUSTER

SCHOOL IMPROVEMENTS GRANTS CLUSTER

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
School Improvement Grants through State of Kentucky

SUBTOTAL DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

TOTAL SCHOOL IMPROVEMENTS GRANTSCLUSTER

TANF CLUSTER

Temporary Assistance for Needy Families through Eastern Kentucky University

TOTAL TANF CLUSTER

MEDICAID CLUSTER

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
Medical Assistance Program through State of Kentucky

SUBTOTAL DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

TOTAL MEDICAID CLUSTER

Pass Through Fiscal 2014

CFDA # Entity # Expenditures
84.042 219,729
84.044 290,953
84.047 641,012
84.047 COE - Upward Bound (7,508)
1,144,186
1,144,186
84.377 PON254012000029051 275,982
275,982
275,982
93558 452660-14-157 83,317
83,317
93.778 Multiple 101,208
101,208
101,208

See notes to the schedule of expenditures of federal awards
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UNIVERSITY OF LOUISVILLE

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 (CONTINUED)

Federal Grant or Program Title

OTHER PROGRAMS

DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE

Specia Supplemental Nutrition Program for Women, Infants and Children (WIC)
Through State of Kentucky

Rural Energy for America Program

SUBTOTAL DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE

DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT
Community Development Block Grants— Small Cities Program

Through the Governor’s Office for Local Development — State of Kentucky
Capacity Building for Sustainable Communities

Through Institute for Sustainable Communities

SUBTOTAL DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

Department of Justice Contracts

Project Safe Neighborhoods through Louisville Metro Government
Public Safety Partnership and Community Policing Grants

SUBTOTAL DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

DEPARTMENT OF LABOR

Trade Adjustment Assistance Community College and Career Training (TAACCCT) Grants

Through Edvantia, Inc.

SUBTOTAL DEPARTMENT OF LABOR

DEPARTMENT OF STATE
Academic Exchange Programs — Scholars

SUBTOTAL DEPARTMENT OF STATE

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY

Environmental Finance Center Grants

Surveys, Studies, Investigations and Demonstrations, and Training Grants
Through New Mexico Institute of Mining & Technology

Pollution Prevention Grants Program
Through State of Kentucky

Source Reduction Assistance

Brownfield Assessment and Cleanup Cooperative Agreements through State of Kentucky

SUBTOTAL ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY

DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY
State Energy Program Special Projects through State of Kentucky

SUBTOTAL DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

Pass Through Fiscal 2014
CFDA # Entity # Expenditures

10.557 PO2 728 1200004961 1 287,915
10.868 1,366
289,281

14.219 PONZ2 112 11000023171 145,560
14.705 206,860
14.705 Capacity Building 42,283
394,703

16.000 18,269
16.609 Violent Gang And Gun 22,861
16.710 17,547
58,677

17.282 Multiple 10,998
10,998

19.401 271,488
271,488

66.203 143,046
66.424 P0011490-NMT BTTA10 85,882
66.708 169,555
66.708 PO2 129 1400002256 1 42,040
66.717 37,098
66.818 BF-95482511-0 10,786
488,407

81.119 Multiple 50,586
50,586

See notes to the schedule of expenditures of federal awards
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UNIVERSITY OF LOUISVILLE

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 (CONTINUED)

Federal Grant or Program Title

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

Department of Education Contract through State of Kentucky
UL Perkins Field-Based L eadership Project 2013-14
Career and Technical Education — Basic Grants to States
Through Colton Redlands Y ucai pa Regional Occupational Program
Through Cornell University
Through Providence Public School Department
Through Oregon Department of Education
Through State of Kentucky
Career and Technical Education — National Programs
Fund for the Improvement of Postsecondary Education
Safe and Drug-Free Schools and Communities — State Grants
Through State of Kentucky
Fund for the Improvement of Education
Through Ewing Marion Kauffman Foundation
Through Jefferson County Public Schools
Through Ohio Valley Education Cooperative

Special Education — Personnel Development to Improve Services and Results for Children with Disabilities

Through State of Kentucky
Special Education — State Program Improvement Grants for Children with Disabilities
Through Bellewood Presbyterian Home for Children

Special Education — Personnel Development to Improve Services and Results for Children with Disabilities

Gaining Early Awareness and Readiness for Undergraduate Programs through State of Kentucky
Child Care Access Means Parentsin School
Mathematics and Science Partnerships
Through Jefferson County Public Schools
Through State of Kentucky
Improving Teacher Quality State Grants
Through National Writing Project
Through State of Kentucky
ARRA —Investing in Innovation (i3) Fund through State of Kentucky
National Writing Project through National Writing Project Corporation

SUBTOTAL DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

Healthy Marriage Promotion and Responsible Fatherhood Grants
Enhance Safety of Children Affected by Substance Abuse through Eastern Kentucky University
Model State Supported Area Health Education Centers
Maternal and Child Health Federal Consolidated Programs
Emergency Medical Servicesfor Children
Coordinated Services and Access to Research to Women, Infants, Children & Youth
Grants to States to Support Oral Health Workforce Activities through State of Kentucky
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services — Projects of Regional and National Significance
Through American Academy of Addiction Psychiatry
Advanced Nursing Education Grant Program
Centers for Disease Control & Prevention: Investigations and Technical Assistance
Through Catholic Charities
Through Kentuckiana Regional Planning & Development Agency
Through State of Kentucky
Through University of Kentucky Research Foundation
Teenage Pregnancy Prevention Program through Case Western Reserve University
Cancer Research Manpower
Community Transformation Grants and National Dissemination and Support
Through Louisville/Jefferson Co Metro Government

Pass Through Fiscal 2014
CFDA # Entity # Expenditures

84.000 PON2540 1300000397 1 28,479
84.045 28,284
84.048 NRCCTE CRYROP 546
84.048 68471-9999 7,748
84.048 ULRF Providence PSD 7,212
84.048 Contract 8695 24,251
84.048 Multiple 3,279
84.051 (30,528)
84.116 24,097
84.186 Head Start Mental 32,769
84.215 20130212 11,552
84.215 U215X080020-11 18,195
84.215 MOA OVEC 130562 25,555
84.235 THRIVE (2,160)
84.323 Multiple 426,938
84.325 247,777
84.334 PO2 415 1000004108 2 (241)
84.335 115,443
84.366 PON2540130000017981 42,832
84.366 PON254013000002411 2,541
84.367 Multiple 12,540
84.367 P0241512000035941 11,498
84.411 ARRA: College Access 471,372
84.928 92-KY 03 Amendment 21 (5,229)

1,504,750
93.086 (4,160)
93.087 EKU 452668-14-160 52,952
93.107 765,706
93.110 16,282
93.127 178,509
93153 517,926
93.236 PO2 728 12000054221 8,110
93.243 411,063
93.243 H79Ti023439 5,000
93.247 370,683
93.283 261-10-8080-2013 48,389
93.283 Multiple 140,694
93.283 Multiple 137,489
93.283 Multiple 119,032
93.297 5 TP2AH000010-02,03,04 1,009,490
93.398 577,887
93531 Multiple 35,018

See notes to the schedule of expenditures of federal awards
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UNIVERSITY OF LOUISVILLE

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 (CONTINUED)

Federal Grant or Program Title

The Coordinated Chronic Disease Prevention and Health Promotion Program
Through State of Kentucky
Refugee and Entrant Assistance
Through Catholic Charities
Through State of Kentucky
Family Violence Prevention and Services
Assistance for Torture Victims
Children's Justice Grants to States through State of Kentucky
Child Welfare Research Training or Demonstration
Adoption Opportunities
Through State of Kentucky
Foster Care Title IV-E
Through Eastern Kentucky University
Through Seven Counties Services
National Bioterrorism Hospital Preparedness Program
Through State of Kentucky
Through University of Kentucky Research Foundation
Grants to Provide Outpatient Early Intervention Services with Respect to HIV Disease
Ryan White HIV/AIDS Dental Reimbursements
Geriatric Education Centers through University of Kentucky

Maternal and Child Health Services Block Grant through State of Kentucky

SUBTOTAL DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

CORPORATION FOR NATIONAL AND COMMUNITY SERVICE
Social Innovation Fund through Kentucky One Health

SUBTOTAL CORPORATION FOR NATIONAL AND COMMUNITY SERVICE

DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY
Non-Profit Security Program through State of Kentucky
Hazard Mitigation

Through Louisville/Jefferson County Metro Government

Through State of Kentucky
Assistance to Firefighters Grant

SUBTOTAL DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY

TOTAL OTHER PROGRAMS

TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Pass Through Fiscal 2014

CFDA # Entity # Expenditures
93544 PON27281200002131 1 $ 32,706
93576 252-10-8080-2013 40,636
93576 252-10-8080-2012 4,867
93592 60,643
93.604 318,013
93.643 PO2 736 1200004474 1 172,936
93.648 (4,659)
93.652 318,341
93.652 PO2 736 1200005067 1 51,824
93.658 Multiple 587,611
93.658 1H79T1024158-01 17,699
93.889 P0O272813000044521 178,522
93.889 UKRF304810953513018 2,846
93.918 606,364
93.924 641,316
93.969 UKRF304811081414-072 106,576
93.994 Multiple 581,632
8,107,943
94.019 2012KHFI013 60,711
60,711
97.008 PO2 725 1300003928 1 30,729
97.039 PO 284859 61,159
97.039 Multiple 634,855
97.044 224,050
950,793
12,188,337
$ 267,015,551

See notes to the schedule of expenditures of federal awards
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UNIVERSITY OF LOUISVILLE

NOTESTO SCHEDULE
OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

1. BASISOF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (Schedule) of the University of
Louisville (University) has been prepared in the format as set forth in U.S. Office of Management
and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133, Audits of Sates, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts
presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic financia statements. The purpose of the
Schedule is to present a consolidated summary of those expenditures of the University for the year
ended June 30, 2014, which has been financed by the U.S. Government (Federal awards). For
purposes of the Schedule, Federal awards include al Federal assistance and procurement
relationships entered into directly and indirectly between the University and the Federa
government and sub-awards from non-federal organizations made under federally sponsored
agreements.

The accounting principles followed by the University and used in preparing the Schedule are as
follows:

The schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes amounts expended by the University
and its affiliated corporation, the University of Louisville Research Foundation, Inc.

Deductions (expenditures) for direct costs are recognized as incurred using the accrual
method of accounting and the cost accounting principles contained in OMB Circular A-21,
Cost Principles for Educational Institutions. Under those cost principles, certain types of
expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. Moreover, expenditures
include a portion of costs associated with general University activities (facilities and
administrative costs) which are allocated to awards under negotiated formulas commonly
referred to asindirect cost rates.
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UNIVERSITY OF LOUISVILLE

NOTESTO SCHEDULE
OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 (CONTINUED)

2. SUBRECIPIENTS

Of the federal expenditures presented in the schedule, the University provided federal awards to
subrecipients as follows:

Fiscal 2014
FEDERAL FUNDSPROVIDED TO SUBRECIPIENTS CFDA # Expenditures
Community Development Block Grants/Discretionary Grants 14.219 94,786
Capacity Building for Sustainable Communities 14.705 132,710
Conservation Grants Private Stewardship for Imperiled Species 15.632 12,443
Education and Human Resources 47.076 243,874
Pollution Prevention Grants Program 66.708 17,583
Specia Education Grantsto States 84.027 209,133
Career and Technical Education — National Programs 84.051 75,917
Fund for the Improvement of Postsecondary Education 84.116 7,716
Specia Education — State Personnel Devel opment 84.323 1,775
Heart and Vascular Diseases Research 84.377 189,000
Model State Supported Area Health Education Centers 93.107 577,394
Biological Response to Environmental Health Hazards 93.113 126,537
Oral Disease and Disorders Research 93.121 96,217
Research Related to Deafness and Communication Disorders 93.173 78,733
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services—Projects of Regional and Nationa Significance 93.243 131,255
Drug Abuse and Addiction Research Programs 93.279 26,325
Cancer Cause and Prevention Research 93.393 17,545
Cancer Detection and Diagnosis Research 93.394 4,970
Adoption Opportunities 93.652 116,378
Heart and Vascular Diseases Research 93.837 1,428,620
Blood Diseases and Resources Research 93.839 10,856
Arthritis, Muscul oskeletal and Skin Diseases Research 93.846 25,272
Diabetes, Digestive, and Kidney Diseases Extramural Research 93.847 187,004
Clinical Research Related to Neurologica Disorders 93.853 135,603
Allergy, Immunology, and Transplantation Research 93.855 264,729
Biomedical Research and Research Training 93.859 1,745,599
Child Health and Human Development Extramural Research 93.865 6,119
Retinal and Choroidal Diseases Research 93.867 112,639
National Bioterrorism Hospital Preparedness Program 93.889 26,195
U.S. Dept. of Homeland Security 97.000 329,031
Hazard Mitigation through State of Kentucky 97.039 11,328
TOTAL FEDERAL FUNDS PROVIDED TO SUBRECIPIENTS $ 6,443,286
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UNIVERSITY OF LOUISVILLE

NOTESTO SCHEDULE
OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 (CONTINUED)

3. NON-CASH FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

Outstanding loan balances at June 30, 2014 were as follows:

Federal Perkins Loan Program

Health Professions Student L oans — Medical
Health Professions Primary Care — Medical
Health Professions Student L oans — Dental
Nursing Student Loans

Loans to Disadvantaged Students—Medical
Loans to Disadvantaged Students — Dental

Total Student Loans Outstanding

Loans received by students for the period ending June 30, 2014 were as follows:

Federal Perkins Loan Program

William D. Ford Federal Direct Loan Program
Health Professions Primary Care — Medical
Health Professions Student Loans— Dental
Loans to Disadvantaged Students — Medical

Total Non-Cash Financial Assistance

14

CFDA # Total
84.038 8,525,535
93.342 (34)
93.342 3,813,150
93.342 3,323,657
93.364 129,275
93.342 182,481
93.342 43,977

16,018,041

CFDA # Total
84.038 1,119,838
84.268 139,998,979
93.342 277,524
93.342 510,000
93.342 63,000

141,969,341
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based
on an Audit of the Financial Statements Performed in Accordance With
Government Auditing Standards

Board of Trustees
University of Louisville
Louisville, Kentucky

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicabl e to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the basic financial statements of
the University of Louisville and Affiliated Corporations (University) and its aggregate discretely
presented components, collectively, a component unit of the Commonwealth of Kentucky, which
comprise the statement of net position as of June 30, 2014, and the related statements of revenues,
expenses and changes in net position and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notesto
the basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated September 29, 2014, which
contained “emphasis of matter” paragraphs regarding a change in accounting principle, achangein
reporting entity and a restatement of previously issued financial statements and a reference to the
report of other auditors. Other auditors audited the financial statements of the University of
Louisville Physicians, Inc., adiscretely presented component unit, as described in our report on the
University’sfinancial statements. The consolidated financial statements of the University of
Louisville Foundation, Inc. and Affiliates and the financial statements of the University of Louisville
Physicians, Inc., discretely presented component units of the University, were not audited in
accordance with Government Auditing Standar ds.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management of the University is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over financial reporting (internal control). In planning and performing our audit, we
considered the University’ sinternal control to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the University’ sinternal control.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the University’ sinternal control.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph
and was not designed to identify al deficienciesin internal control that might be material weaknesses
and, therefore, there can be no assurance that all material weaknesses have been identified. However,
as discussed in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs, we identified a certain
deficiency ininternal control that we consider to be a material weakness.

Praxity.:
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Board of Trustees
University of Louisville
Page 2

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent or detect and correct misstatements on atimely basis. A significant deficiency isa
deficiency, or acombination of deficiencies, in internal control that isless severe than a material
weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. A material
weaknessis a deficiency, or acombination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that thereisa
reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the University’ s financial statements will
not be prevented or detected and corrected on atimely basis. We consider the deficiency
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2014-001 to be
amaterial weakness.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the University’s financial statements are
free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct
and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly,
we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Sandards.

University’s Response to Findings

The University's response to the finding identified in our audit is described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs. The University's response was not subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express
no opinion on it.

We noted certain matters that we reported to the University’ s management in a separate | etter
dated September 29, 2014.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of thisreport is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the University'sinternal control or on compliance. Thisreport isan integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the University’s

internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other
purpose.

BED L

Louisville, Kentucky
September 29, 2014

Praxity:
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Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program,
Report on Internal Control Over Compliance and Report on Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by OMB Circular A-133

Independent Auditor’s Report

Board of Trustees
University of Louisville
Louisville, Kentucky

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited the compliance of the University of Louisville and Affiliated Corporations
(University) with the types of compliance requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133
Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal
programs for the year ended June 30, 2014. The University’s major federal programisidentifiedin
the summary of auditor’ s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned
costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and
grants applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility isto express an opinion on compliance for each of the University’s mgjor federal
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States and OMB Circular A-
133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB
Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have
adirect and material effect on amagjor federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a
test basis, evidence about the University’ s compliance with those requirements and performing such
other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major

federal program. However, our audit does not provide alegal determination of the University’s
compliance.

Praxity.:
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Board of Trustees
University of Louisville
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Basis for Qualified Opinion on Student Financial Aid Cluster

As described in item 2014-002 in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs,
the University did not comply with requirements regarding enrollment status change notification
for its Student Financial Aid Cluster program. Compliance with such requirements is necessary,
in our opinion, for the University to comply with requirements applicabl e to that program.

Qualified Opinion on Student Financial Aid Cluster

In our opinion, except for the noncompliance described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion
paragraph, the University complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
regquirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on its Student
Financial Aid Cluster program for the year ended June 30, 2014.

Other Matters

The University’ s response to the findings identified in our audit are described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. The University’ s response was hot
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we
express no opinion on the response.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the University is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In
planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered the University’ sinternal control
over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on
each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance for each major federal
program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB
Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal
control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the
University’ sinternal control over compliance.

A deficiency ininternal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with atype of
compliance requirement of afederal program on atimely basis. A material weaknessin internal
control over complianceis a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance such that there is a reasonabl e possibility that material noncompliance with atype of
compliance requirement of afederal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on
atimely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with atype of compliance
requirement of afederal program that is less severe than a material weaknessin internal control
over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
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Board of Trustees
University of Louisville
Page 3

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficienciesin internal
control over compliance that might be material weaknesses and therefore, material weaknesses
may exist that were not identified. We consider the deficiency in internal control over
compliance described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs asitem
2014-002 to be a material weakness.

The University’ s response to the finding identified in our audit is described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs. The University’ s response was not subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion
on the response.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of OMB Circular A-133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
purpose.

Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by
OMB Circular A-133

We have audited the financial statements of the University and its discretely presented component
units as of and for the year ended June 30, 2014, and the related notes to the financial statements,
which collectively comprise the University’ s basic financial statements. We issued our report
thereon dated September 29, 2014, which contained an unmodified opinion on those financial
statements. Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial
statements that collectively comprise the basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule
of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additiona analysis as required by
OMB Circular A-133 and is not arequired part of the basic financial statements. Such
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards isfairly stated in al
material respectsin relation to the basic financia statements as awhole.

BKED L

Louisville, Kentucky
September 29, 2014
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University of Louisville
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2014

Summary of Auditor’s Results
1. Theopinion expressed in the independent auditor’ s report was:
X Unmodified [ ] Qualified []Adverse [ ] Disclaimer
2. Theindependent auditor’ s report on internal control over financial reporting described:

Significant deficiency(ies)? [ ]Yes <] None Reported

Material weakness(es)? X Yes [ INo

3. Noncompliance considered material to the financial statements
was disclosed by the audit? [ ]Yes X] No

4. Theindependent auditor’ s report on internal control over compliance for major federal awards
programs discl osed:

Significant deficiency(ies)? [ ]Yes X] None Reported
Material weakness(es)? X Yes [ INo

5. The opinions expressed in the independent auditor’ s report on compliance for major federal awards

were:

[ ] Unmodified X Qualified [ ] Adverse [ ] Disclaimer

6. The audit disclosed findings required to be reported by OMB

Circular A-133? X Yes [ ]INo
7. The University’s mgor programis.

Cluster/Program CFDA Number
Student Financial Aid Cluster Various

8. Thethreshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs as those terms are defined in
OMB Circular A-133 was $3,000,000.

9. TheUniversity isqualified as alow-risk auditee asthat termis
defined in OMB Circular A-133? [ ]Yes X] No
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University of Louisville

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (continued)

Year Ended June 30, 2014

Findings Required to be Reported by Government Auditing Standards

Reference Questioned
Number Finding Costs
2014-001  Criteriaor specific requirement: Management is responsible for N/A

establishing and maintaining effective internal controls over
financial reporting.

Condition: During the 2014 audit, material adjustments were
discovered and recorded by management resulting in aprior year
restatement of the University’s financial statements.

Context: Management isresponsible for the fair presentation of
the financial statements in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Effect: Potentially material misstatementsin the financial
statements and disclosures could occur.

Cause: Management obtained additional information on various
policies and procedures regarding capitalizing assets and recording
of certain Medicaid revenue and related receivables.

Recommendation: Management should continue to review
policies and procedures throughout the University and continue to
provide training and updates to unit business managers.

Views of responsible officials and planned corrective actions.
Management agrees with the recommendation. Communication is
essential to an organization as decentralized and complex as the
University and its Affiliates. Asof May 2014, the associate vice
president for finance and her staff have regular meetings with the
financial administration of the Health Science Campus, including
their new chief financial officer. Discussions concerning capital asset
accounting have been held with the senior business managers
involved in the adjustment. Additional training isin development for
the library department, as well as senior business managersin all
areas. Through the re-organization of the business managersinto
shared business service units, management can more effectively
communicate and educate unit business managers on proper
accounting treatment.
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University of Louisville

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (continued)

Year Ended June 30, 2014

Findings Required to be Reported by OMB Circular A-133

Reference Questioned
Number Finding Costs
2014-002  U.S. Department of Education — Student Financial Aid Cluster None

CFDA No. 84.268, Federal Direct Student Loan Program
CFDA No. 84.063, Federal Pell Grant Program
Program Y ear 2013 — 2014

Criteria or Specific Requirement — Special tests and provisions
related to notifying the National Student Loan Data System
(NSLDS) of student enrollment changes within required time
frames.

Condition — The University is required to submit to the Department
of Education viaNSLDS enrollment status changes for students that
received aloan or Pell grant and did not enroll or ceased to be
enrolled on at least a half-time basis within required time frames.

Context — Out of a population of 2,241 enrollment status changes, a
sample of 25 status changes were selected for testing. For four
students tested, the University did not notify the NSLDS within
required time frames.

Effect — The University did not notify the Department of Education
regarding student enrollment changes within required time frames.

Cause — Personnel responsible for notification overlooked these
students and did not report to the NSL DS within the required time
frame.

Recommendation — The University should ensure that personnel
handling such submissions report enrollment changes to the NSLDS
within the required time frames and batch files are compl ete.

Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Actions —
Management agrees with the finding and Members of the Registrar's
Office, the Office of Institutional Research and Planning and the
Office of Student Financial Aid have met to discuss needed changes
to ensure enrollment data is reported in a means to help ensure
federa requirements are met. Management determined the schedule
of enrollment reporting to the Clearinghouse will be revised to
ensure students who drop to less than half-time, graduate or
withdraw are reported in time to be processed by the Clearinghouse
and reported to NSLDS within 30 days and more communication
between the various departments has been established to ensure
accurate, timely and complete information is provided.
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University of Louisville
Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings
Year Ended June 30, 2014

Findings Required to be Reported by OMB Circular A-133

Reference
Number Finding Status
2013-001  U.S. Department of Education — Student Financial Aid Cluster Corrected

CFDA No. 84.063, Federa Pell Grant Program
Program Y ear 2012 — 2013

Criteria of Specific Requirement — Special tests and
provisions related to verification of student aid applications.

Condition — Federal regulations provide that the University is
responsible for verifying certain information on the student’s
application for financial aid. The University did not update
certain students' aid applications and award information for
discrepancies between the aid applications and supporting
documentation.

Context — Out of a population of 3,372 applications selected
by the Central Processing System for verification, a sample of
25 applications was selected for testing. For four students
tested, the University did not update inaccurate information
reported on the ISIR in order to correct the Expected Family
Contribution (EFC). Asaresult, the University over-awarded
$2,400 in Pell Grant awards to one student.

Effect — Aid applications and expected family contributions
were not updated for four students and for one of these
students, incorrect awards were disbursed.

Cause — The Financial Aid Office obtained the appropriate
information to verify the information on the students
applications but did not update the information and amounts
awarded based on this information.
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Independent Auditor's Report

Board of Trustees
University of Louisville and Affiliated Corporations
Louisville, Kentucky

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying basic financial statements of the University of Louisville and
Affiliated Corporations (University) and its aggregate discretely presented component units,
collectively a component unit of the Commonwealth of Kentucky as of and for the years ended
June 30, 2014 and 2013, and the related notes to the basic financial statements, which collectively
comprise the University’ s basic financial statements listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statementsin
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility isto express opinions on these financial statements based on our audits. We did
not audit the financial statements of the University of Louisville Physicians, Inc. (ULP), adiscretely
presented component unit of the University, which financial statements reflect total assets of $36,981
and $26,732 as of June 30, 2014 and 2013, and total revenues, gains and other support of $135,962
and $102,195 for the years then ended (in thousands). Those statements were audited by other
auditors, whose report thereon has been furnished to us, and our opinions, insofar asit relates to the
amounts included for ULP, is based solely on the report of the other auditors. We conducted our
audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonabl e assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement. The consolidated financial statements of the University of Louisville Foundation, Inc.
and Affiliates, and the financial statements of ULP, discretely presented component units of the
University, were not audited in accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

Praxity.:
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’ s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
University’ s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statementsin order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the University’sinternal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, based on our report and the report of the other auditors, the financial statements
referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financia position of the
University and its aggregate discretely presented component units as of June 30, 2014 and 2013, and
the respective changes in financial position and cash flows thereof for the years then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matters

Asdiscussed in Note 1 to the financia statements, in 2014 the University implemented the provisions
of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported
as Assets and Liabilities, which changed its method of accounting for debt issuance costs and the
reporting of deferred losses from the refunding of debt to deferred outflows of resources, al of which
have been applied retrospectively. Our opinions are not modified with respect to this matter.

Also as discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, in 2014 the University changed its reporting
entity to include ULP as adiscretely presented component unit in accordance with GASB Statement
No. 61, The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus an amendment of GASB Satements No. 14 and
No. 34. Our opinions are not modified with respect to this matter.

Asdiscussed in Note 18 to the financial statements, the 2013 financial statements have been restated
to correct a misstatement. Our opinions are not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matter
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of Americarequire that the
management’ s discussion and analysis and postemployment benefit information listed in the table of
contents be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not
part of the basic financial statements, is required by GASB, who considers it to be an essential part of
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statementsin an appropriate operational, economic
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or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information
and comparing the information for consistency with management’ s responses to our inquiries, the
basic financia statements and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated

September 29, 2014, on our consideration of the University’ s internal control over financial reporting
and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to
provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report isan
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standardsin considering
the University’sinternal control over financial reporting and compliance.

BKED L

Louisville, Kentucky
September 29, 2014



UNIVERSITY OF LOUISVILLE AND AFFILIATED CORPORATIONS
A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Kentucky
Management's Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)
Introduction

The following discussion and analysis provides an overview of the financial position and activities of the
University of Louisville and Affiliated Corporations (the University) for the years ended June 30, 2014,
2013 and 2012. The affiliated corporations include the University of Louisville Research Foundation,
Inc. (Research Foundation) and the University of Louisville Athletic Association, Inc. (Association). This
discussion has been prepared by management and should be read in conjunction with the financial
statements and the notes thereto, which follow this section.

The University is a state supported metropolitan research university located in the Commonwealth of
Kentucky’s (Commonwealth) largest city. It was a municipally supported public institution for many
decades prior to joining the state university system in 1970. The University has three campuses with a
Fall 2013 enrollment of 22,529 students and 6,737 faculty and staff members. The Belknap Campus is
three miles from downtown Louisville and houses eight of the University’s twelve colleges and schools.
The Health Sciences Center is situated in downtown Louisville’s medical complex and houses the
University’s health related programs and the University of Louisville Hospital (Hospital). On the Shelby
Campus, located in eastern Jefferson County, are the National Crime Prevention Institute, the Center for
Predictive Medicine regional biosafety lab, and the Division of Distance and Continuing Education.
Shelby Campus is also the site of commercial development through Campus One and Campus Two, joint
ventures between the University of Louisville Foundation, Inc. (Foundation) and NTS Development
Company. In recent years, the University has also offered expanded campus courses at both off-site and
international locations.

The University offers graduate, professional, baccalaureate, and associate degrees, as well as certificates,
in over 200 degree programs through 12 schools and colleges. In the 2013-2014, 2012-2013 and 2011-
2012 academic years, the University conferred 4,815, 4,825 and 4,897 degrees, respectively, consisting
of:

2014* 2013 2012
Baccalaureate 2,821 2,731 2,702
Masters/Specialist 1,242 1,379 1,439
First Professional 394 375 361
Certificate 36 24 28
Doctorate 162 140 188
Associate 19 28 11
Post Baccalaureate 136 141 163
Post Masters 5 7 5

*Data preliminary pending final reconciliation with the Kentucky Council
on Postsecondary Education (CPE)

In an effort to improve the Commonwealth’s postsecondary education system by the year 2020, the
Kentucky Postsecondary Education Improvement Act of 1997 (House Bill 1) was passed. This legislation
established a goal for the University to become a nationally recognized metropolitan teaching and
research university.



The University has developed a strategic plan through the year 2020. The ‘2020 Plan. Making it
Happen” (the 2020 Plan) strategic plan is firmly grounded in the mission and values of the University and
responsive to the appropriate needs of the greater community, the state, the nation and beyond. It
articulates strategies to ensure that the University becomes the university of first choice for students and
recognized among the nation’s foremost public metropolitan research universities with a faculty of
distinction who have outstanding national and international reputations in research and other scholarly
activities. Toward that end, the University embarked on its 21* Century Initiative last year. Following in
the steps of the 2020 Plan, the 21* Century Initiative is a process that is examining the University’s
academic and research priorities and how the University can change its structures and culture to best
support its work.

The University has made enormous strides in its efforts to become a nationally recognized metropolitan
teaching and research university since the Commonwealth passed House Bill 1 mandating postsecondary
education reform. The University reinvested in and reorganized undergraduate education including the
honors program, raised the average ACT scores of entering freshmen to 25.2 in the Fall of 2013, and the
number of endowed chairs to 156 for fiscal year 2014.

The University completed a new state of the art student sports and recreation center on the west side of
Belknap campus. The 128,000 square foot facility is the first University building to be heated and cooled
with geothermal energy.

The University is dedicated to achieve the goals established by the Commonwealth and the Board of
Trustees in an effort to improve the quality of life for the citizens of our metropolitan area and the
Commonwealth as it strives to achieve prominence as a premier metropolitan research institution.

Financial Highlights

e The University’s financial position remains strong at June 30, 2014, with total assets and deferred
outflows of resources of $1.2 billion that exceed total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources of
$506.6 million by a ratio of over 2:1, consistent with the ratio as of June 30, 2013. Net position,
which represents the residual interest in the University’s assets and deferred outflows of resources
after liabilities and deferred inflows of resources are deducted, was $693.8 million as of
June 30, 2014.

e Gross tuition and fees were $281.9 million for the year ended June 30, 2014, an increase of
$17.2 million, or 6% compared to the $264.7 million reported in the previous year. Approved tuition
rate increases for 2013-14 generated approximately $9.0 million in additional tuition revenues in
addition to enrollment increases and other fee increases, which contributed approximately
$8.2 million.

e Total general fund appropriations from the Commonwealth were $147.3 million for the year.
Appropriations and certain other revenues and expenses are reported under Government Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 35 as nonoperating revenues.

e Operating revenues amounted to $629.4 million and operating expenses were $870.7 million resulting
in a net operating loss of $241.3 million. When adjusted for $147.3 million in state appropriations and
$92.1 million in other net nonoperating revenues, net position of the University decreased by
$1.9 million for the year ended June 30, 2014.

e During the year ended June 30, 2014, the University adopted GASB No. 65 Items Previously
Reported as Assets and Liabilities. This standard was applied retroactively and prior statements were
restated related to the requirement that debt issuance costs be recognized as an expense in the period



incurred and reclassification of loss on refunding as a deferred outflow of resources previously
classified as liabilities.

Using the Financial Statements

The University’s financial report includes three financial statements: the Statements of Net Position; the
Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position; and the Statements of Cash Flows. These
financial statements are prepared in accordance with GASB principles.

Significant presentations within the financial statements include:

e Revenues and expenses are categorized as either operating or nonoperating. Significant recurring
sources of the University’s revenues, including state appropriations, gifts and investment income or
loss are considered nonoperating.

e Scholarships and fellowships applied to student accounts are shown as a reduction of student tuition,
while stipends and other payments made directly to students continue to be presented as scholarship
and fellowship expenses.

e Capital assets are recorded net of the effects of accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is recognized
on the straight-line basis, over the estimated useful lives of the capital assets, as an operating expense.

Statements of Net Position

The statements of net position present the financial position of the University at the end of the fiscal year
and include all assets, liabilities, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources of the
University. Net position, the difference between total assets, total liabilities, total deferred outflows of
resources and total deferred inflows of resources, provide a snapshot of the current financial condition of
the University at the end of a fiscal year. The change in net position indicates whether the overall
financial condition has improved or worsened during the year. Assets, liabilities, deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources are generally measured using current values. Pledges
receivable with payment terms greater than one year are discounted. Capital assets are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation. The University’s assets, liabilities, deferred outflows of resources,
deferred inflows of resources and net position at June 30, 2014, 2013 and 2012 are summarized on the
following page:



Condensed Statements of Net Position
June 30, 2014, 2013, and 2012
(In Thousands)

Restated
Restated Restated 2014 - 2013 2013 - 2012
2014 2013 2012 Change Change
ASSETS
Current assets $ 194,306 $ 182,293 $ 204,273 $ 12,013 $ (21,980)
Long-term investments 54,718 57,501 59,963 (2,783) (2,462)
Capital assets, net 876,058 871,587 874,949 4,471 (3,362)
Other 74,340 105,252 117,523 (30,912) (12,271)
Total assets 1,199,422 1,216,633 1,256,708 (17,211) (40,075)
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 957 1,124 1,270 (167) (146)
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities 179,620 179,360 153,545 260 25,815
Noncurrent liabilities 322,071 336,729 333,102 (14,658) 3,627
Total liabilities 501,691 516,089 486,647 (14,398) 29,442
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 4,881 6,011 7,223 (1,130) (1,212)
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 611,785 594,840 598,218 16,945 (3,378)
Restricted-nonexpendable 1,656 1,538 1,421 118 117
Restricted-expendable 74,077 83,255 88,728 (9,178) (5,473)
Unrestricted 6,289 16,024 75,741 (9,735) (59,717)
Total net position $ 693,807 $ 695,657 $ 764,108 $ (1,850) $ (68,451)
Assets

Current assets amounting to $194.3 million consist primarily of cash of $75.9 million; loans, accounts and
contributions receivable, net of $75.5 million; due from the Foundation of $15.5 million; short-term
investments of $8.9 million and deposit with bond trustee and escrow agent of $8.8 million.

Current assets increased $12.0 million, reflecting the increase in loans, accounts and contributions
receivable, net of $25.0 million and due from the Foundation of $12.4 million offset by the decrease in
cash and cash equivalents of $17.9 million. The increase in accounts receivable is primarily related to a
$15.1 million increase in patient care receivables, net of discount and allowance resulting from additional
Medicaid patients and other contractual agreements. Due from the Foundation increases and decreases as
amounts are disbursed by the University on behalf of the Foundation and is subsequently reimbursed.
During fiscal year 2014, the University approved the loan of $29.0 million to the Foundation in order to
complete certain real estate purchases. The loan is due in June 2015 and includes a provision for the
payment of interest. As of June 30, 2014, $5.8 million is included in the due from the Foundation. Cash
decreased as payments to employees and suppliers surpassed the receipts from students, clinical services,
grants and contracts.

Noncurrent assets total $1.0 billion including capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation of
$876.1 million, represents 73% of total assets. Other noncurrent long-term investments total
$54.7 million, noncurrent loans, accounts and contributions receivable were $41.7 million and restricted
cash and cash equivalents were $19.8 million.

Noncurrent assets decreased $29.2 million, including a decrease of $34.4 million in restricted cash and
cash equivalents. Restricted cash and cash equivalents are principally comprised of cash expendable for
the construction and renovation projects of the University. Cash decreased by progress payments to



contractors, including a project to construct a new student recreation center and a project to construct a
soccer stadium. The decrease was partially offset by an increase in capital assets, net totaling $4.5 million.

Deferred Outflows of Resources

In addition to assets the University reports deferred outflows of resources, which represent a consumption
of net assets applicable to a future period. The University reports as deferred outflows of resources the
loss on refunding of the Consolidated Educational Building Revenue Bonds Series N and Series O by the
issuance of General Receipts 2012 Series A and the loss on refunding the County of Jefferson Kentucky
Governmental Lease Revenue Bonds, Series 1997 by the issuance of Metro Government Revenue
Refunding and Improvement Bonds, Series 2008A. The decrease of $0.2 million relates to its recognition
as expense.

Liabilities

As of June 30, 2014, the University’s $501.7 million in total liabilities consist of $179.6 million in current
liabilities and $322.1 million in noncurrent liabilities. Accounts payable and accrued liabilities of
$91.7 million and advances of $64.6 million comprise 87% of total current liabilities. The $0.3 million
increase in current liabilities relates primarily to the $6.8 million increase in advances. Offsetting this
accounts payable and accrued liabilities decreased $3.2 million. Advances increased related to the receipt
of $8.3 million from KentuckyOne Health under the academic affiliation agreement expected to be
recognized as revenue in the next year. Accounts payable and accrued liabilities decreased for the
payment totaling $2.5 million and the reclassification to other long-term liabilities totaling $3.5 million of
conference realignment fees owed, partially offset by an increase in the amount of refund due to
University of Louisville Physicians, Inc. (ULP).

Noncurrent liabilities consist chiefly of $248.4 million in bonds and notes payable. This represents the
portion of bonds, notes, and leases payable due in excess of one year. The $14.7 million decrease in
noncurrent liabilities relates primarily to the $23.1 million decrease in bonds and notes payable, offset by
the $10.4 million increase in advances. Bonds and notes payable decreased for principal maturities during
the year. Partially offsetting the decrease is the receipt of an advance of $10.5 million from Kentucky
One Health under the academic affiliation agreement.

Deferred Inflows of Resources

In addition to liabilities, the University reports deferred inflows of resources, which represent an
acquisition of net position that applies to future periods. The University reports as other long-term assets
the fair market value of two financial derivatives related to outstanding debt. As both derivatives are
considered to be effective in the reduction of risk, the change in their fair market value is shown as a
deferred inflow of resources. The fair market value of the forward delivery agreement and the interest
rate swap entered into as part of the term loan received in June 2013 decreased $68 thousand and
$103 thousand respectively. Because of the decline in value, the interest rate swap totaling $23 thousand
has been reclassified as a deferred outflow of resources

The net of the investments and contributions provided by agreement with the University’s food service
provider totaling $4.6 million and $5.6 million for June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively, are recorded as
deferred inflows of resources on the statements of net position. The decrease relates to its recognition as
revenue evenly over the life of the contract.

Net Position

The University’s net position at June 30, 2014 was $693.8 million. A review of the University’s
statements of net position at June 30, 2014 and 2013 reflects the University’s prudent management of its
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financial resources as provided through appropriations from the Commonwealth, private donations
transferred from the Foundation and research initiatives.

The Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position provide detail for the changes in net
position. In total, net position is similar to the prior year, decreasing $1.9 million, as the University
continues to find more revenue sources and lower expenses through efficiencies.

The University’s total net position is summarized into four major categories in accordance with GASB
Statement No. 35 reporting requirements as amended by GASB Statement No. 63 as follows:

Net Investment in Capital Assets - $611.8 million

The University’s net investment in capital assets represent land, buildings, equipment and depreciable
library materials, net of accumulated depreciation, related deferred outflows of resources reduced by
related deferred inflows of resources and debt attributable to the acquisition, construction, or
improvement of those assets.

Restricted-nonexpendable Net Position - $1.7 million

Restricted-nonexpendable net position includes amounts that are subject to externally imposed restrictions
that require the University to maintain the assets in perpetuity. The University’s restricted-nonexpendable
net position consists of permanent endowment for scholarships.

Restricted-expendable Net Position - $74.0 million

Restricted-expendable net position represents net position that is subject to externally imposed restrictions
governing its use for a particular purpose or period of time including related deferred outflows of
resources reduced by related deferred inflows of resources and the outstanding balance of any related
liabilities. The University’s most significant net position in this category as of June 30, 2014 consists of
amounts restricted for capital projects of $27.0 million, public service of $17.0 million and debt service of
$16.1 million. Net position restricted-expendable for debt service include funds on deposit with bond
trustees as required by various bond indentures and amounts receivable under various pledges that support
the Stadium expansion project. The amounts restricted for public service relate primarily to the funds
received under the agreement with KentuckyOne Health. The net position remains restricted until a
contract is completed or the restrictions are otherwise expired.

Unrestricted Net Position - $6.3 million

Unrestricted net position results primarily from net operating income in excess of expenses. Although
unrestricted net position is not subject to externally imposed stipulations, substantially all of the
University’s unrestricted net position has been designated for various academic programs, research
initiatives, and capital projects.

Capital Assets

Actual capital additions totaled $63.6 million in 2014. Capital additions consisted mainly of
$43.4 million in additions to construction in progress, $8.7 million in additions to buildings, $7.0 million
in investments in equipment including information technology, and $3.9 million in investment in library
materials. Construction in progress additions includes $16.0 million for the Dr. Mark & Cindy Lynn
Soccer Stadium, $8.0 million for Belknap Science and Engineering Park Road and $6.8 million to
establish an addition to the Center for Predictive Medicine.



Prior Year Discussion

Current assets amounting to $182.3 million consist primarily of cash of $93.8 million; loans, accounts and
contributions receivable, net of $50.6 million; short-term investments of $13.3 million and deposit with
bond trustee and escrow agent of $12.4 million.

Current assets decreased $22.0 million, reflecting decreases in cash and cash equivalents of $16.5 million,
loans, accounts and contributions receivable, net of $10.6 million and due from the Foundation of
$6.0 million. Cash decreased for decreased funding from clinical units. The decrease in loans accounts
and contributions receivable, net is related to the accounts receivable from the hospital affiliation
agreement. Partially offsetting these decreases, short-term investment increased $11.0 million.

Noncurrent assets total $1.0 billion and include capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation of
$871.6 million, which represents 72% of total assets. Noncurrent assets decreased $18.1 million,
including a decrease of $11.9 million in restricted cash and cash equivalents, as funds were used in
construction projects.  Association investments held by the Foundation decreased $4.1 million as
resources were used to provide support to the University and fulfill contract obligations.

The balance of deferred outflows of resources of $1.1 million and $1.3 million as of June 30, 2013 and
2012, respectively represent the loss on refunding of University and Association debt. The decrease
relates to the amortization of these amounts to expense

As of June 30, 2013, the University’s $516.1 million in total liabilities consist of $179.4 million in current
liabilities and $336.7 million in noncurrent liabilities. The $25.8 million increase in current liabilities
relates primarily to the $18.7 million increase in accounts payable and accrued liabilities, related to the
voluntary separation incentive plan established during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013.

Noncurrent liabilities consist chiefly of $271.6 million in bonds and notes payable. The $3.6 million
increase in noncurrent liabilities relates primarily to the $14.0 million increase in other long-term
liabilities, offset by the $8.7 million decrease in bonds and notes payable. The increase in other long-term
liabilities relates principally to the liability for the voluntary separation incentive plan.

The balance of deferred inflows of resources of $6.0 million and $7.2 million for June 30, 2013 and 2012,
respectively, primarily represent the net of the investments and contributions required by agreement with
the University’s food service provider totaling $5.6 million and $6.7 million. The decrease is related to
the recognition of the net benefit over the life of the contract.

Net position decreased $68.5 million as compared to June 30, 2012, principally due to a net decrease in
academic program support of $24.5 million, a result of a reduction in revenues from the transition to ULP,
for voluntary separation plan expense of $18.0 million, for the accrual of an $10.0 million conference
realignment fee and for a decrease in net position restricted for debt service of $7.5 million, a result of a
scheduled decrease.

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
The statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net position present the University’s results of

operations. Condensed statements of the University’s revenues, expenses and changes in net position for
the years ended June 30, 2014, 2013 and 2012, are summarized on the following page:
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Condensed Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Years ended June 30, 2014, 2013, and 2012
(In Thousands)

Restated
Restated Restated 2014 - 2013 2013 - 2012
2014 2013 2012 Change Change
OPERATING REVENUES
Student tuition and fees, net 209,442 $ 195,627 $ 182,902 $ 13,815 $ 12,725
Clinical services and practice plan 227,858 193,212 195,903 34,646 (2,691)
Grants and contracts 91,886 94,309 110,487 (2,423) (16,178)
Facilities and administrative cost recoveries 21,965 24,011 26,899 (2,046) (2,888)
Other 78,251 69,997 62,169 8,254 7,828
Total operating revenues 629,402 577,156 578,360 52,246 (1,204)
OPERATING EXPENSES
Depreciation 56,333 55,311 60,940 1,022 (5,629)
Other 814,339 801,696 770,280 12,643 31,416
Total operating expenses 870,672 857,007 831,220 13,665 25,787
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
State appropriations 147,256 144,066 156,114 3,190 (12,048)
Other nonoperating revenues 92,164 85,335 64,472 6,829 20,863
Total nonoperating revenues 239,420 229,401 220,586 10,019 8,815
Voluntary separation plan expense - 18,001 - (18,001) 18,001
Decrease in net position (1,850) (68,451) (32,274) 66,601 (36,177)
Net position - beginning of year, as
previously reported - - 805,512
Adjustments applicable to prior year - - (9,130)
Net position - beginning of year, as restated 695,657 764,108 796,382 (68,451) (32,274)
Net position - end of year $ 693,807 $ 695,657 $ 764,108 $ (1,850) $ (68,451)

Operating Revenues

Tuition and state appropriations provide the chief sources of support for the University's academic
programs. Revenues from tuition, clinical services, and certain grants and contracts are classified as
operating revenues as defined by GASB Statement No. 35, Basic Financial Statements and
Management’s Discussion and Analysis for Public Colleges and Universities. Other revenue sources,
such as state appropriations and investment income are considered nonoperating revenues.

Student tuition and fees, net of allowances for scholarships and fellowships of $72.4 million and
$69.1 million, were $209.4 million and $195.6 million, or 33% and 34% of total operating revenues, for
the years ended June 30,2014 and 2013, respectively. Gross tuition and fees revenues increased
$17.2 million, or 6% compared to the previous year. This additional revenue resulted from approved
tuition rate increases providing $9.0 million and increased enrollment and other fee increases providing
$8.2 million. The increase was offset by the increase in tuition discount of $3.3 million, due mainly to
increased scholarships, which are directly related to tuition rates.

Clinical services and practice plan revenue amounted to $227.9 million and $193.2 million, or about 36%
and 33% of total operating revenues, for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. These
revenues relate to patient care performed in clinics under contractual arrangements with governmental
and private insurers, laboratory services and clinical support provided by affiliated hospitals and the
University’s professional practice plan. Clinical services and practice plan revenue increased by
$34.6 million, including $26.0 million from clinical operations, due to an increase in the number of
Medicaid patients.
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Revenue from grants and contracts was $91.9 million and $94.3 million for the years ended June 30, 2014
and 2013, respectively. The decrease reflects the national trend of fewer grants and contracts available
from Federal and State agencies.

The University receives revenues for research and contracts from government and private sources, which
normally provide for the recovery of direct and indirect costs. Facilities and administrative cost recoveries
were $22.0 million and $24.0 million for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013. These funds assist the
University with its vision to become first choice for students and to be recognized among the nation’s
foremost public metropolitan research universities with a faculty of distinction who have outstanding
national and international reputations in research and other scholarly activities.

The following is a graphic illustration of revenues by source that are used to fund the University’s
operating activities for the years ended June 30, 2014, 2013 and 2012 (in millions):

Operating Revenues
Years ended June 30, 2014, 2013, and 2012

I . ]
I $209.4 - $195.6 - $182.9 B Student tuition and fees

OClinical services

O Grants and contracts

B F&A cost recoveries

o Other

2014 2013 2012
Restated Restated

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses amounted to $870.7 million and $857.0 million and exceeded operating revenues by
$241.3 million and $279.9 million for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. When offset
by total nonoperating revenues of $239.4 million and $229.4 million and after reduction for the voluntary
separation plan expense of $18.0 million during fiscal 2013, total net position for the year decreased by
$1.9 million and $68.5 million for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Operating
expenses increased by $13.7 million or 2% over the amount reported in the previous year. This reflects
the University’s commitment to reach goals established under the 2020 Plan, a long-range strategic and
financial plan.

On the following page are graphic illustrations of total expenses by functional and natural classifications
for the years ended June 30, 2014, 2013 and 2012 (in millions):
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Operating Expenses by Functional Classification
Years ended June 30, 2014, 2013, and 2012

B Instruction

O Research

B Public service

O Academic support
O Other

B Intercollegiate athletics

@ Depreciation

2014 2013 2012
Restated Restated

Operating Expenses by Natural Classification
Years ended June 30, 2014, 2013, and 2012

O Salaries and wages

B Employee benefits

O Utilities

OScholarships and
fellowships

@ Depreciation

B Supplies and other
services

2014 2013 2012
Restated Restated

The University is committed to recruiting and retaining an outstanding faculty and staff and the
compensation package is one way to successfully compete with peer institutions and nonacademic
employers. The resources expended for compensation and benefits were $575.7 million and
$567.6 million in 2014 and 2013, respectively.
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Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

General state appropriations amounting to $147.3 million and $144.1 million were the most significant
nonoperating revenues for the years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

In total, net nonoperating revenues and other revenues increased $10.1 million from the prior year
including the increase in net assets transferred from Foundation of $8.1 million, the increase in capital
gifts of $6.1 million and the increase in capital appropriation of $2.5 million. The increase in transfers
from the Foundation related principally to $6.9 million received by the Association to fund construction
on the soccer and softball stadiums and for an increase of $2.0 million in transfers to the University to
fund employee salary increases. The increase in capital gifts this year relates to Association pledges
including $5.7 million for the soccer stadium and $4.4 million for the academic center. Capital
appropriation revenue represents funding for the development of a new research park on the Belknap
Campus. Partially offsetting these increases is a decrease in other nonoperating revenue of $12.0 million
relating to the receipt by the Research Foundation during fiscal 2013 of refunds of FICA tax withheld on
medical residents.

Prior Year Discussion

Gross tuition and fees revenues increased $16.3 million, or 7% compared to the previous year. This
additional revenue resulted from approved tuition rate increases providing $11.7 million and increased
enrollment and other fee increases providing $4.6 million. The increase was offset by the increase in
tuition discount of $3.6 million. Clinical services and practice plans revenue amounted to $193.2 million
and $195.9 million for the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively. Revenue from grants and
contracts was $94.3 million and $110.5 million for the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively.
Facilities and administrative cost recoveries were $24.0 million and $26.9 million for the years ended
June 30, 2013 and 2012 and is directly related to the number of active grants and contracts.

Operating expenses amounted to $857.0 million and $831.2 million for the years ended June 30, 2013 and
2012, respectively. Operating expenses increased by $25.8 million, or 3%, over the amount reported in
the previous year.

General state appropriations amounting to $144.1 million and $156.1 million were the most significant
nonoperating revenues for the years ended June 30,2013 and 2012, respectively. In total, net
nonoperating revenues and other revenues increased $8.8 million from the prior year including the
increase in other nonoperating revenues of $18.1 million and the decrease in state appropriations of
$12.0 million. Other nonoperating revenues increased due to the refund of the employer portion of FICA
tax on medical residents paid in years prior to April 2005. State appropriations decreased in accordance
with the budget passed by the Commonwealth.

Voluntary separation plan expense of $18.0 million is principally related to the accrual of contractual

payments associated with the acceptance by eligible employees of an offer to make certain separation
payments.
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Statements of Cash Flows

The statements of cash flows provide additional information about the University’s financial results by
reporting the major sources and uses of cash. The condensed statements of cash flows for the years ended
June 30, 2014, 2013 and 2012 are summarized below:

Condensed Statements of Cash Flows
Years ended June 30, 2014, 2013, and 2012
(In Thousands)

Restated
Restated Restated 2014 - 2013 2013 - 2012

2014 2013 2012 Change Change

Cash (used)/provided by:
Operating activities $ (210,628) $ (193,156) $ (182,857) $ (17,472) $ (10,299)
Noncapital financing activities 231,699 229,338 231,137 2,361 (1,799)
Capital and related financing activities (81,910) (57,865) (51,367) (24,045) (6,498)
Investing activities 8,466 (6,725) 6,687 15,191 (13,412)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash

equivalents (52,373) (28,408) 3,600 (23,965) (32,008)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 148,053 176,461 172,861 (28,408) 3,600
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 95,680 $ 148,053 $ 176,461 $ (52,373) $ (28,408)

Operating Activities

Cash used for operating activities increased $17.5 million due to increased cash used for payments to
suppliers of $32.0 million, increased cash used for payments for benefits of $14.6 million and decreased
cash provided from grants and contracts of $10.4 million. Partially offsetting these cash uses, cash
provided by clinical services and practice plan increased $31.0 million mainly due to the new academic
affiliation agreement with KentuckyOne Health. Cash provided by tuition and fees increased
$13.0 million due to increased enrollment and tuition rates.

Financing Activities

Cash provided by noncapital financing activities increased $2.4 million primarily due to increased cash
provided by transfers from related entities of $8.1 million, increased cash provided by nonexchange
grants and contracts of $3.5 million and increased cash provided by state appropriations of $3.2 million.
Partially offsetting these increases was decreased cash provided by other noncapital financing activities of
$12.0 million. The increase in cash provided by transfers from related entities relates mainly to the
transfer of $6.9 million to the Association to fund the construction of the soccer and softball stadiums.
Cash provided by nonexchange grants and contracts varies with the number of active grants. The
decrease in cash provided by other noncapital financing activities relates to the refund during fiscal 2013
of Medicare tax on medical residents.

Cash used for capital and related financing activities increased $24.0 million due mainly to a decrease in
cash provided from proceeds from issuance of long-term liabilities of $17.3 million and for an increase in
cash used for the purchase of capital assets of $10.2 million. Cash provided during the prior year from
the proceeds from issuance of long-term liabilities included a $15.0 million term loan entered into by the
Association and a $2.3 million note payable issued by the University.

Investing Activities
Cash from investing activities increased $15.2 million due mainly to a change in the net amount of

investments purchased and sold, which totaled $7.4 million sold for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014,
as compared to $7.8 million purchased for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013.
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Prior Year Discussion

For the fiscal year ended June 30,2013, the University's cash and cash equivalents decreased
$28.4 million from cash used by operating activities of $193.1 million, capital and related financing
activities of $57.9 million and investing activities of $6.7 million. Partially offsetting these cash uses,
cash provided by noncapital financing activities totaled $229.3 million

Cash used for operating activities increased $10.3 million over the prior year due to increased cash used
for payments to employees of $11.3 million, decreased cash provided from grants and contracts of
$9.5 million and increased cash used for payments to suppliers of $6.8 million. Partially offsetting these
cash uses, cash provided by tuition and fees increased $13.3 million, due to increased enrollment and
tuition rates.

Cash from noncapital financing activities decreased $1.8 million primarily due to decreased cash provided
by state appropriations of $15.0 million and decreased cash provided by transfers from related entities of
$3.6 million offset by increased cash provided by other noncapital financing activities of $17.5 million.
The reduction in cash from state appropriations was a result of a state imposed cut. Cash provided by
other noncapital financing activities increased due to the refund of the employer portion of FICA tax on
medical residents for years prior to April 2005.

Cash used for capital and related financing activities increased $6.5 million due mainly to a decrease in
cash provided from proceeds from the issuance of long-term liabilities of $38.3 million. Cash provided
during 2012 from the University’s issuance of General Receipts Series 2011 and General Receipts Series
2012 totaled $37.7 million and $17.0 million, respectively, and exceeded the cash provided during 2013
by a $15.0 million term loan entered into by the Association. Partially offsetting the decrease in this cash
source was a decrease in principal paid on long-term liabilities of $18.1 million and a decrease in cash
used for purchases of capital assets of $9.4 million. The payment of principal decreased, mainly due to
the refinancing of CEBRB Series N and Series O during 2012.

Cash from investing activities decreased $13.4 million due mainly to a change in the net amount of
investments purchased and sold, which totaled $7.8 million purchased for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2013, as compared to $0.9 million sold for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. Cash provided
by interest on investments also decreased $4.7 million. Earnings decreased on construction proceeds of
tax exempt debt due to a decrease in the balance invested with the state and with escrow agent. Earnings
also decreased on funds on deposit with bond trustee due to a scheduled decrease in the required reserves
and the receipt during 2012 of a termination payment associated with the cancelation of an investment
contract.

Component Units

The Foundation and ULP are included as a discretely presented component units of the University. The
Foundation acts primarily as a fundraising organization to supplement the resources that are available to
the University in support of its programs. The majority of the Foundation’s assets relate to investments
held for the benefit of the University. Investments at June 30, 2014, were $795.3 million, an increase of
$56.9 million from the June 30, 2013, balance of $738.4 million. Investments increased due to the net
realized and unrealized gain of $116.7 million, which is due mainly to trends in the markets.

ULP is a private, nonprofit corporation that functions as the corporate structure for the clinical practices

of the faculty of the University’s School of Medicine and maintains close financial and operational
relationships with the University.
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Economic Factors That May Affect the Future

As mandated by House Bill 1 of the 1997 General Assembly, the University is to become a nationally
recognized metropolitan research university by 2020. The first important step towards achieving that
mandate was the Fall 2008 introduction of the 2020 Plan. The 2020 Plan is the strategic blueprint for the
University to achieve House Bill 1’s mandate. This plan was drafted after the Board of Trustees
empowered President James Ramsey to aggressively move ahead towards the next level in the
University’s pursuit of excellence.

The University has faced many fiscal challenges that have impacted campus operations both prior to, and
subsequent to, The 2020 Plan’s introduction. The national recession of 2007 to 2009 has exacerbated the
decline in state general fund support. State appropriations in constant dollars have decreased each year
from the beginning of the recession in fiscal year 2008 through the current fiscal year 2015 budget. The
constant dollar decrease for this period is 26.4%, over one-quarter of fiscal year 2008 levels. The effect
on constant dollar State Appropriation per Full-Time Equivalent (FTE) student has been even more
dramatic during this period—a decrease of 32.3%.

The 2014-16 biennial budget passed by the 2014 General Assembly in April 2014 reflected a net 1.5%
reduction, or $2.1 million, in state support for the University in fiscal year 2015. The fiscal year 2016
budget is flat lined from fiscal year 2015. The reduced state funding continues to impact daily operations.
The University has not received maintenance and operation funding for new buildings in several years.

The budgetary decisions that support and shape the fiscal year 2015 budget reflect the current and
foreseeable economic realities facing public higher education institutions in general and the University in
particular.

Due to the changing landscape of higher education across the United States, the University has embarked
on a consultative process aimed at re-shaping and re-engineering the financial and physical landscape of
the University. The “21* Century Initiative” led by the University Provost is a broad-based, campus-wide
initiative to position the University to not only meet the 2020 Plan goals, but also to address ways of
better serving students and the community in the future.

Again this year, the annual budget focused on the University’s “Upward Trajectory”. Despite fourteen
budget cuts in fifteen years, the lack of maintenance and operations funding, and the dramatic shift in
public policy that has, and continues to direct funding away from higher education, the University has
made tremendous progress in meeting its 2020 goals. The President outlined the University’s successes
across a myriad of key academic, research, and public service metrics noting, “it’s not just about the
numbers, it’s about the people.” These successes—the result of hard work by the University’s faculty,
staff and students—has the University well positioned to meet House Bill 1°s aggressive mandate to
become a premier metropolitan research university.

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the University’s finances and to show
the University’s accountability for the money it receives. Questions about this report and requests for
additional financial information should be directed to the Controller, University of Louisville, Louisville,
KY 40292.
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University of Louisville and Affiliated Corporations
A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Kentucky

Statements of Net Position
June 30, 2014 and 2013
(In Thousands)

ASSETS

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Deposit with bond trustee and escrow agent
Short-term investments
Loans, accounts and contributions receivable, net
Due from University of Louisville Foundation, Inc.
Inventories
Other assets

Total current assets

Noncurrent Assets
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Deposit with bond trustee
Loans, accounts and contributions receivable, net
Due from University of Louisville Foundation, Inc.

Investments held with University of Louisville Foundation, Inc.

Other long-term investments
Other long-term assets
Capital assets, net
Total noncurrent assets
Total assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Unearned compensation and wages payable
Advances

Note payable to University of Louisville Foundation, Inc.

Bonds and notes payable
Total current liabilities

Noncurrent Liabilities
Due to University of Louisville Foundation, Inc.

Note payable to University of Louisville Foundation, Inc.

Unearned compensation and wages payable
Deposits
Advances

Amounts due to federal government for student loan programs

Other long-term liabilities
Bonds and notes payable
Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for:
Nonexpendable
Scholarships and fellowships
Expendable
Scholarships and fellowships
Research
Instruction
Public service
Academic support
Institutional support
Loans
Capital projects
Debt service
Unrestricted
Total net position

Restated

2014 2013
$ 75,876 $ 93,810
8,782 12,365
8,938 13,321
75,543 50,559
15,489 3,123
862 1,067
8,816 8,048
194,306 182,293
19,804 54,243
2,622 2,509
41,658 39,420
9,854 8,509
34,314 32,710
20,404 24,791
402 571
876,058 871,587
1,005,116 1,034,340
1,199,422 1,216,633
957 1,124
91,705 94,868
529 1,233
64,632 57,796
- 200
22,754 25,263
179,620 179,360
316 316
1,000 1,000
6,414 7,441
919 781
15,085 4,721
16,355 16,525
33,559 34,381
248,423 271,564
322,071 336,729
501,691 516,089
4,881 6,011
611,785 594,840
1,656 1,538
883 913
758 3,833
2,701 1,809
17,011 241
364 267
6,637 16,671
2,697 2,707
26,951 31,768
16,075 25,046
6,289 16,024
$ 693,807 $ 695,657

See notes to the financial statements
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University of Louisville Foundation, Inc. and Affiliates
Consolidated Statements of Financial Position
June 30, 2014 and 2013
(In Thousands)

2014 2013
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 21,537 $ 27,303
Accounts, notes and accrued interest receivable 5,092 3,723
Loans receivable 16,178 2,008
Prepaid expenses 2,436 1,392
Contributions receivable 31,099 21,812
Investments 795,311 738,446
Funds held in trust by others 52,480 46,749
Restricted investments 7,069 5,473
Other assets 2,038 1,128
Capital assets, net 179,873 148,435
Total assets $ 1,113,113 $ 996,469
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 9,143 $ 6,232
Funds held in trust for others 45,104 42,685
Other liabilities 22,913 20,158
Due to University of Louisville 25,344 11,632
Bonds and notes payable 127,419 100,581
Total liabilities 229,923 181,288
Net assets:
Unrestricted:
Unrestricted - designated 117,168 149,660
Unrestricted - undesignated 31,514 10,284
Total unrestricted 148,682 159,944
Temporarily restricted 308,821 248,622
Permanently restricted 425,687 406,615
Total net assets 883,190 815,181
Total liabilities and net assets $ 1,113,113 $ 996,469

See notes to the financial statements
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University of Louisville Physicians, Inc.

Statements of Financial Position
June 30, 2014 and 2013

(In Thousands)

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Assets limited as to use

Patient accounts recievable, less allowance for

uncollectible accounts of $34,870 and $22,838

Receivables, related parties

Other receivables

Receivable, sale-leaseback

Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Total current assets

Investment in Kentuckiana Medical Reciprocal Risk
Retention Group (KMRRRG)

Property and equipment:
Furniture, fixtures, and equipment
Leasehold improvements
Practice management system

Accumulated depreciation and amortization

Total property and equipment, net

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND NET DEFICIT
Current liabilities

Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and related expenses
Line of credit
Current portion of capital lease obligations
Current portion of Passport settlement
Current portion of long-term debt

Total current liabilities

Long-term liabilities:
Deferred gain on sale-leaseback of equipment
Capital lease obligations, net of current portion
Passport settlement, net of current portion
Long-term debt, net of current portion

Total long-term liabilities
Total liabilities
Net assets (deficits):
Unrestricted:
Net deficit

Invested in property and equipment, net of
related debt

Total net deficit

Total liabilities and net deficit

2014 2013
$ 280 $ 1,011
630 2,000
9,861 10,400
2,087 2,026
1,156 500
- 742
1,214 200
15,228 16,879
11,623 -
1,494 1,084
1,268 1,064
9,679 8,139
12,441 10,287
(2,311) (434)
10,130 9,853
$ 36,981 $ 26,732
$ 8,859 $ 6,132
5,601 4,517
12,266 12,005
3,001 2,985
1,724 1,739
509 501
32,050 27,879
434 517
5,180 8,271
1,773 3,416
539 1,039
7,926 13,243
39,976 41,122
(5,049) (15,212)
2,054 822
(2,995) (14,390)
$ 36,981 $ 26,732

See notes to the financial statements
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University of Louisville and Affiliated Corporations
A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Kentucky
Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Years Ended June 30, 2014 and 2013
(In Thousands)

Restated
2014 2013
OPERATING REVENUES
Student tuition and fees, net of scholarship allowance of
$72,414 in 2014 and $69,099 in 2013 $ 209442 $ 195,627
Clinical services and practice plan 227,858 193,212
Federal grants and contracts 70,255 74,137
State and local grants and contracts 9,325 10,555
Nongovernmental grants and contracts 12,306 9,617
Sales and services of educational departments 5,332 4,452
Facilities and administrative cost recoveries 21,965 24,011
Auxiliary enterprises, net of discount of $1,601
in 2014 and $1,616 in 2013 13,007 13,384
Intercollegiate athletics 49,155 45,878
Other operating revenues 10,757 6,283
Total operating revenues 629,402 577,156
OPERATING EXPENSES
Instruction 270,083 262,281
Research 114,870 118,193
Public service 96,206 88,373
Academic support 92,743 91,114
Student services 28,140 27,043
Institutional support 48,253 44,178
Operation and maintenance of plant 53,761 54,970
Scholarships and fellowships 29,821 28,870
Auxiliary enterprises 7,860 8,045
Intercollegiate athletics 72,602 78,629
Depreciation and amortization 56,333 55,311
Total operating expenses 870,672 857,007
Operating loss (241,270) (279,851)
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
State appropriations 147,256 144,066
Gifts 29,245 30,448
Nonexchange grants and contracts 41,706 39,774
Investment income 1,324 1,106
Realized and unrealized gain on investments 2,231 1,177
Interest on capital asset-related debt (20,939) (10,996)
Other nonoperating revenues 1,906 13,900
Net nonoperating revenues 212,729 219,475
Loss before other revenues, expenses, gains and losses (28,541) (60,376)
Capital appropriations 2,539 -
Capital gifts 13,126 7,031
Net assets transferred from University of Louisville Foundation, Inc. 11,026 2,895
Total other revenues 26,691 9,926
Voluntary separation plan expense - 18,001
Decrease in net position (1,850) (68,451)
NET POSITION
Net position - beginning of year, as previously reported - 769,377
Adjustments applicable to prior years - (5,269)
Net position - beginning of year, as restated 695,657 764,108
Net position - end of year $ 693,807 $ 695,657

See notes to the financial statements
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University of Louisville Foundation, Inc. and Affiliates
Consolidated Statements of Activities
Years Ended June 30, 2014 and 2013
(In Thousands)

Unrestricted Temporarily restricted Permanently restricted Totals
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
REVENUES, GAINS AND OTHER SUPPORT
Gifts $ 28,370 $ 24,487 $ 11,986 $ 3,568 $ 9,767 $ 11,690 $ 50,123 $ 39,745
Investment income 797 820 - - - - 797 820
Endowment income 1,189 1,824 7,535 4,414 37 53 8,761 6,291
Net realized and unrealized gain
on investments 26,876 19,323 81,728 51,644 8,132 2,469 116,736 73,436
Residence hall income 7,394 7,216 - - - - 7,394 7,216
Real estate income 2,885 2,322 - - - - 2,885 2,322
Actuarial loss on annuity and
trust obligations - - (647) (1,397) - - (647) (1,397)
Other revenues 9,927 8,484 - - - - 9,927 8,484
Net assets released from restrictions:
Satisfaction of program restrictions 39,185 33,998 (39,185) (33,998) - - - -
Reclassifications 82 2,184 (1,218) (1,027) 1,136 (1,157) - -
Total revenues, gains and other support 116,705 100,658 60,199 23,204 19,072 13,055 195,976 136,917
EXPENSES
Contributions to various University 11,026 2,895 - - - - 11,026 2,895
Payments on behalf of the University
Instruction 9,897 7,145 - - - - 9,897 7,145
Research 26,553 21,511 - - - - 26,553 21,511
Public service 7,154 3,579 - - - - 7,154 3,579
Academic support 15,207 17,215 - - - - 15,207 17,215
Student services 424 186 - - - - 424 186
Institutional support 23,617 16,268 - - - - 23,617 16,268
Operation and maintenance of plant 4,136 2,457 - - - - 4,136 2,457
Scholarships/fellowships 9,404 9,577 - - - - 9,404 9,577
Interest expense 4,236 3,664 - - - - 4,236 3,664
Residence hall operations 5,332 5,151 - - - - 5,332 5,151
Real estate operations 9,231 6,381 - - - - 9,231 6,381
General and administrative 1,750 8,837 - - - - 1,750 8,837
Total expenses 127,967 104,866 - - - - 127,967 104,866
Net change in assets from operations (11,262) (4,208) 60,199 23,204 19,072 13,055 68,009 32,051
Net assets at beginning of year 159,944 164,152 248,622 225,418 406,615 393,560 815,181 783,130
Net assets at end of year $ 148,682 $ 159,944 $ 308,821 $ 248,622 $ 425,687 $ 406,615 $ 883,190 $ 815,181

See notes to the financial statements
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UNIVERSITY OF LOUISVILLE PHYSICIANS, INC.

Statements of Activities
Years Ended June 30, 2014 and 2013

Unrestricted revenues, gains and other support:
Net patient service revenue
Provision for bad debts

Net patient service revenue less provision for bad debts

University of Louisville

University Physicians Associates, Inc. (UPA)
Academic programmatic support - related parties
Academic programmatic support

Stimulus income

Medical directorship

Other revenue

Integration support reimbursements

Clinical services settlement

Gain on acquisition of UPA assets

Gain on investment in KMRRRG

Interest income

Total unrestricted revenues, gains and other support

Expenses and losses:
Program services
Management and general
Loss on sale-leaseback of equipment

Total expenses and losses
Transfer of investment in KMRRRG from UPA

Change in net deficit
Net deficit, beginning of year

Net deficit, end of year

2014 2013
$ 169,103 $ 116,811
(78,011) (48,011)
91,092 68,800
30,978 18,109
208 622
2,586 3,660
737 2,738
4,263 1,031
193 603
1,272 226
2,652 3,182
1,088 -
- 3211

873 -
20 13
135,962 102,195
112,761 87,205
22,557 24,026
- 847
135,318 112,078
10,751 -
11,395 (9,883)
(14,390) (4,507)
$  (2,995) $ (14,390)

See notes to the financial statements
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University of Louisville and Affiliated Corporations
A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Kentucky
Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended June 30, 2014 and 2013
(In Thousands)

Restated
2014 2013
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Student tuition and fees $ 208,307 $ 195,347
Clinical services and practice plan 232,688 201,660
Grants and contracts 87,864 98,237
Sales and services of educational departments 5,222 4,419
Payments to suppliers (169,160) (137,157)
Payments for utilities (20,564) (19,395)
Payments to employees (425,141) (421,130)
Payments for benefits (121,424) (106,822)
Payments for scholarships and fellowships (20,832) (20,250)
Loans issued to students and employees 505 240
Auxiliary enterprises 11,540 11,117
Facilities and administrative cost recoveries 21,965 24,011
Intercollegiate athletics, net (31,453) (27,739)
Other receipts 9,855 4,306
Net cash used by operating activities (210,628) (193,156)
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
State appropriations 147,256 144,066
Gifts 29,448 29,815
Nonexchange grants and contracts 42,664 39,209
Transfers from University of Louisville Foundation, Inc. 11,026 2,895
Other noncapital financing activities 1,305 13,353
Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 231,699 229,338
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Capital appropriations received 2,539 -
Capital gifts received 8,917 6,098
Purchases of capital assets (59,160) (48,936)
Proceeds from issuance of bonds and notes payables - 17,253
Payments of issuance costs - (82)
Payment on note payable to University of Louisville Foundation, Inc. (200) (200)
Principal paid on bonds and notes payable (25,955) (25,119)
Interest paid on bonds and notes payable (11,520) (11,018)
Deposits with bond trustee and escrow agent 3,469 4,139
Net cash used by capital and related financing activities (81,910) (57,865)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments 15,453 15,489
Purchase of investments (8,024) (23,317)
Interest on investments 1,037 1,103
Net cash provided/(used) by investing activities 8,466 (6,725)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (52,373) (28,408)
Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of year 148,053 176,461
Cash and cash equivalents - end of year $ 95,680 $ 148,053

See notes to the financial statements
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University of Louisville and Affiliated Corporations

A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Kentucky
Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended June 30, 2014 and 2013
(In Thousands)

RECONCILIATION OF NET OPERATING LOSS TO NET CASH

USED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating loss

Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash used by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization

Loss on equipment disposals

Change in assets and liabilities:
Loans, accounts and contributions receivable, net
Inventories
Other assets
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Advances
Deposits

Due from University of Louisville Foundation, Inc.

Unearned compensation and wages payable
Other long-term liabilities
Deferred inflows of resources

Net cash used by operating activities

Non cash transactions:
Capital lease additions
Capital asset additions in accounts payable
Capital asset additions in other assets
Gifts of capital assets
Service concession arrangements
Capital asset reimbursement

See notes to the financial statements
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Restated
2014 2013

$ (241,270) $ (279,851)
56,333 55,311
791 582
(21,339) 9,832
205 87

(927) (148)
(3,865) 8,507
16,690 4,790

138 (30)
(13,711) 5,846

(1,846) (441)
(845) 3,471

(982) (1,112)

$ (210,628) $ (193,156)
$ 990 $ 800
$ 8,265 $ 7,226
$ - $ 158
$ - $ 82
$ 22 $ 140
$ (2,000) $ -




University of Louisville and Affiliated Corporations
A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Kentucky
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2014 and 2013

1. Nature of Operations, Basis of Presentation and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The University of Louisville (University) is a state supported metropolitan research university located
in Kentucky’s largest city and is a component unit of the Commonwealth of Kentucky.

The University has three campuses. The Belknap Campus is three miles from downtown Louisville
and houses eight of the University’s twelve colleges and schools. The Health Sciences Center is
situated in downtown Louisville’s medical complex and houses the University’s health related
programs and the University of Louisville Hospital (Hospital). On the Shelby Campus, located in
eastern Jefferson County, are the National Crime Prevention Institute, the Center for Predictive
Medicine regional biosafety lab and the Division of Distance and Continuing Education. In recent
years, the University has also offered expanded campus courses at both off-site and international
locations.

a. Basis of Presentation

The financial statements include the financial position and operations of the University and the
following affiliated corporations, as blended component units, since they are related through
certain common management and trustees:

University of Louisville Athletic Association, Inc. (Association)
University of Louisville Research Foundation, Inc. (Research Foundation)

Under the provisions of GASB Statement No. 61, The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus, the
University reports the University of Louisville Foundation, Inc. and Affiliates (Foundation) and
the University of Louisville Physicians, Inc. (ULP) as discretely presented component units.
During 2014, the University changed its reporting entity to include ULP as a discretely presented
component unit.

The financial statement presentation required by GASB Statement No. 35, Basic Financial
Statements and Management's Discussion and Analysis for Public Colleges and Universities, as
amended by GASB Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources,
Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position, is intended to provide a comprehensive, entity-
wide perspective of the University’s assets, deferred outflow of resources, liabilities, deferred
inflow of resources, net position, revenues, expenses, changes in net position and cash flows.

The separate financial statements of the Association, the Research Foundation and the financial
statements of the University can be found at the following:

http://louisville.edu/finance/controller/univacct/finst-1

b. Cash and Cash Equivalents

The University considers all investments (not held for long-term purposes) with original
maturities of three months or less to be cash equivalents.
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C.

Deposits With Bond Trustee and Escrow Agent

As of June 30, 2014 and 2013, deposits with bond trustee consist of cash and investments in
governmental securities and repurchase agreements of $6.3 million and $6.6 million, respectively,
for the Stadium Project Revenue Bonds, and $5.1 million and $8.2 million for the Educational
Building Bonds and Housing System Revenue Bonds.

Investments in governmental securities are stated at market value. Repurchase agreements are
stated at cost.

Contributions Receivable

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 33, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Nonexchange Transactions, as amended by GASB Statement No. 36, Recipient Reporting for
Certain Shared Nonexchange Revenues, the University records operating and capital pledges as
revenue when all eligibility requirements have been met. Endowment pledges are not recognized
as revenue until the gifts are received.

Investments and Investment Income

Investments in marketable debt and equity securities are stated at current market value. Market
value is determined using quoted market prices. Real estate investments are stated at cost on the
date of acquisition. Certificates of deposit are stated at cost plus accrued interest, which
approximates market. Investment income consists of interest and dividend income, realized gains
and losses and the net change for the year in the fair value of investments carried at fair value.

Investments held with the Foundation are invested under the policies and objectives established
for the Foundation’s general endowment pool. In an effort to mitigate market risk, the
Foundation has adopted a policy of maintaining a diverse investment pool through the use of
target asset allocation guidelines. These guidelines require the Foundation’s investment pool be
made up of a mix of publicly traded fixed income and equity securities, private equities and other
nonmarketable securities and real estate investments.

The market risk inherent in certain of the Foundation’s investments is primarily the potential loss
arising from adverse changes in quoted market prices on equity securities and in interest rates on
fixed income securities.

The Association’s permanent endowment funds, held by the Foundation and invested in the
Foundation’s general endowment pool, are administered under the Uniform Prudent Management
of Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA), as adopted by the Commonwealth of Kentucky. The
Foundation’s board of directors has interpreted UPMIFA as requiring preservation of the fair
value of the original gift as of the gift date of the donor-restricted endowment funds absent
explicit donor stipulations to the contrary. The investment objectives of the Foundation are to
preserve the principal of the endowment funds in both absolute and real terms while maximizing,
over the long-term, the total rate of return (yield and appreciation) within reasonable risk
parameters.

The Foundation invests in various corporate debt, equity, partnerships, marketable alternatives,
mutual fund securities, U.S. Government securities, certificates of deposit, land and buildings.
Investment securities, in general, are exposed to various risks, such as interest rates, credit and
overall market volatility. Due to the level of risk associated with certain investment securities, it
is reasonably possible that changes in the values of investment securities will occur in the near
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h.

term and that such changes could materially affect the amounts reported in the Foundation’s
consolidated statements of financial position.

Loans to Students

The University makes loans to students under various federal and other loan programs. Such
loans receivable are recorded net of estimated uncollectible amounts. The allowance for
uncollectible loans netted against loans to students was approximately $0.7 million and
$0.6 million at June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market, under the first-in, first-out method.

Capital Assets

Capital assets are stated principally at cost, or estimated market value at date of receipt from
donors. Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives
of the assets as follows: buildings — 40 years or componentized using 15-50 years, infrastructure —
60 years, land improvements — 40 years, equipment — 3-15 years, leasehold improvements — 20
years and library materials — 10 years. Assets under capital leases are amortized on the straight-
line basis over the estimated useful life of the asset, or the lease term, whichever is shorter.

The University has elected to capitalize collections which include art, rare books, photographs,
letters, journals, manuscripts and musical instruments. These items are capitalized at cost, or if a
gift, at the fair market value on the date of the gift.

The University capitalizes interest costs as a component of construction in progress, based on
interest costs of borrowing, net of interest earned on investments acquired with the proceeds of
the borrowing.

Total interest incurred was (in thousands):

2014 2013
Total interest expense incurred on
borrowings for project $ 1949 §$ 2861
Interest income from investment of proceeds
of borrowings for project (37) (1,096)
Net interest cost on borrowings for project $ 1912 $ 17765
Interest capitalized $ 757 $ 1535
Interest charged to expense 10,939 10,996
Total interest incurred $ 11696 $ 12,531

Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources

In accordance with GASB No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources,
Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position, the University reports deferred outflows of
resources, deferred inflows of resources and net position in its statements of net position and
related disclosures.

Deferred outflows of resources consist of $0.9 million and $1.1 million of loss on bond
refinancing as of June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively, and $23 thousand of fair market value of
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derivatives as of June 30, 2014. As the derivatives are considered effective hedging instruments,
changes in the fair market value of derivatives are recognized as deferred outflows of resources.
Deferred outflows of resources related to the loss on bond refinancing will be amortized to
interest expense evenly over the remaining life of the refinanced debt.

Deferred inflows of resources consist of $0.3 million and $0.4 million of fair market value of
derivatives and $4.6 million and $5.6 million of service concession arrangements as of June 30,
2014 and 2013, respectively. As the derivatives are considered effective hedging instruments,
changes in the fair market value of derivatives are recognized as deferred inflows of resources.
Deferred inflows of resources related to the service concession arrangements are recognized
evenly over the life of the contract.

Unearned Compensation Expenses

Unearned compensation expenses are recognized as expense over the term of the related
employment agreements.

Advances
Revenues of summer school academic terms are recognized in the fiscal year earned.

Advances related to amounts received from individual and season ticket holders for subsequent
year intercollegiate athletic activities, suite rentals, parking and sponsorship revenue are
recognized over the term of the related athletic activities.

The University receives revenues relative to sponsored agreements via grants, contracts,
cooperative agreements, or other agreements. The flow of funds relative to these sponsored
agreements is in the form of cost reimbursement or advanced funding.

In the case of cost reimbursement, the University incurs costs on behalf of the granting authority
and is then reimbursed for such costs pursuant to the terms of the sponsored agreement. Grant
revenues are recognized as reimbursable costs are incurred.

In the case of advanced funding, the University receives funds prior to incurring costs pursuant to
the sponsored agreement, with the stipulation that these funds may have to be returned to the
sponsor. Grant revenues are recognized as the related grant costs are incurred.

Compensated Absences

University policies permit most employees to accumulate vacation and sick leave benefits that
may be realized as paid time off or, in limited circumstances, as a cash payment. Expense and the
related liability are recognized as vacation or sick benefits are earned, whether the employee is
expected to realize the benefit as time off or in cash. Compensated absence liabilities are
computed using the regular pay and termination pay rates in effect at the statement of net position
date plus an additional amount for compensation-related payments such as social security and
Medicare taxes computed using rates in effect at that date.

. Net Bond Discount

The University amortizes the net bond discount using the effective interest method over the life of
the bond.

-29 -



Net Position

The net position of the University is classified in four components. Net investment in capital
assets consists of the net amount of capital assets, accumulated depreciation, related deferred
outflows and deferred inflows of resources, reduced by the outstanding balances of borrowings
used to finance the purchase or construction of those assets. Restricted-nonexpendable net
position is subject to externally imposed restrictions that require the University to maintain the
assets in perpetuity. Restricted-expendable net position consists of amount of assets and deferred
outflows that must be used for a particular purpose as specified by creditors, grantors or donors
external to the University, reduced by the outstanding balances of any related liabilities or
deferred inflows of resources. Unrestricted net position is the remaining net amount of assets,
related deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources less liabilities that do not meet the
definition of invested in capital assets, net of related debt or restricted.

Classification of Revenues

The University has classified its revenues as either operating or nonoperating revenues according
to the following criteria:

Operating revenues - Operating revenues include activities that have the characteristics of
exchange transactions, such as tuition, clinical operations, grants and contracts and intercollegiate
activities.

Nonoperating revenues - Nonoperating revenues include activities that have the characteristics of
nonexchange transactions, such as state appropriations, capital appropriations, Pell and other
grants and contracts, gifts and contributions, and other revenue sources that are defined as
nonoperating revenues by GASB No. 9, Reporting Cash Flows of Proprietary and
Nonexpendable Trust Funds and Government Entities That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting,
and GASB No. 34, Basic Financial Statements and Management’s Discussion and Analysis for
State and Local Governments, such as investment income.

Student Tuition and Fees

Student tuition and fees are presented net of scholarship allowances in the statements of revenues,
expenses and changes in net position. Scholarship allowances are the difference between the
stated charge for goods and services provided by the University and the amount that is paid by
students and third parties making payments on the behalf of students. To the extent that revenues
from such programs are used to satisfy tuition and fees, the University has recorded a scholarship
allowance. Stipends and other payments made directly to students are presented as scholarships
and fellowships expense.

Clinical Services and Practice Plan Revenue

The University has agreements with third-party payers that provide for payments to the
University at amounts different from its established rates. Net clinical services and practice plan
revenues are reported at the estimated net realizable amounts from patients, third-party payers and
others for the services rendered and include estimated retroactive revenue adjustments and a
provision for uncollectible accounts. Retroactive adjustments are considered in the recognition
of revenue on an estimated basis in the period the related services are rendered and such
estimated amounts are revised in future periods as adjustments become known.
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Government Grants

Support funded by grants is recognized as the University performs the contracted services or
incurs outlays eligible for reimbursement under the grant agreements. Grant activities and
outlays are subject to audit and acceptance by the granting agency and, as a result of such audit,
adjustments could be made.

Tax Status

As a state institution of higher education, the income of the University is generally exempt from
federal and state income taxes under Section 115(a) of the Internal Revenue Code and a similar
provision of state law. However, the University is subject to federal income tax on any unrelated
business taxable income.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, and deferred inflows and
outflows of resources at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses and other changes in net position during the reporting period. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

Change in Accounting Principle

During 2014, the University adopted GASB Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as
Assets and Liabilities (GASB 65). GASB 65 establishes accounting and financial reporting
standards that reclassify, as deferred outflows of resources or deferred inflows of resources,
certain items that were previously reported as assets and liabilities and recognizes, as outflows of
resources or inflows of resources, certain items that were previously reported as assets and
liabilities. GASB 65 also provides other financial reporting guidance related to the impact of the
financial statement elements deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources,
such as changes in the determination of the major fund calculations and limiting the use of the
term “deferred” in the financial statement presentations.

Adoption of GASB 65 resulted in a decrease of $2.3 million in net position as of July 1, 2012 and
a decrease in the decrease in net position of $0.2 million for the year ended June 30, 2013. These
changes resulted from the requirement in GASB 65 that debt issuance costs be recognized as an
expense in the period incurred. Other changes resulting from application of GASB 65 are the
reclassification of the $1.3 million of deferred losses from the refunding of debt to deferred
outflows of resources.

Reclassifications

Certain 2013 amounts have been reclassified to conform to the 2014 presentation. These
reclassifications had no effect on the change in net position.

Cash on Deposit and Investments

The University invests in various investment securities. Investment securities are exposed to various
risks, such as interest rate, market and credit risks. Due to the level of risk associated with certain
investment securities, it is at least reasonably possible that changes in the values of investment
securities will occur in the near term and that such changes could materially affect the investment
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amounts reported in the statements of net position. The following sections discuss the risks related to
deposits and investments held by the University.

a. Summary of Carrying Values

The fair market value of deposits and investments as of June 30, 2014 and 2013 are as follows (in
thousands):

2014 2013

Deposits $ 95,680 $ 148,053
Investments

Variable rate demand notes 4,280 5,507
U.S. Treasury obligations 5,179 9,445
U.S. agencies obligations 3,001 -
Other government obligations 21,361 29,680
Repurchase agreements 6,225 5,429
Investments held with the Foundation 34,314 32,710
Certificates of deposit 698 697
Common stock 2 2
Building - 2,226

$ 170,740 $ 233,749

The deposits and investments shown are included in the statements of net position as follows (in
thousands):

2014 2013
Cash and cash equivalents $ 75,876 $ 93,810
Deposit with bond trustee-current 8,782 12,365
Short-term investments 8,938 13,321
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 19,804 54,243
Deposit with bond trustee-noncurrent 2,622 2,509
Investments held with the Foundation 34,314 32,710
Other long-term investments 20,404 24,791

$ 170,740 $ 233,749

b. Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, a government’s
deposits or collateral securities may not be returned to it. The University currently uses
commercial banks and the Commonwealth of Kentucky (Commonwealth) as its depositories.
Deposits with commercial banks are substantially covered by federal depository insurance or
collateral held by the bank in the University’s name. At the Commonwealth, the University's
accounts are pooled with other agencies of the Commonwealth. These Commonwealth-pooled
deposits are substantially covered by federal depository insurance or by collateral held by the
Commonwealth in the Commonwealth's name. The custodial credit risk for investments is the
risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty to a transaction, a government will not be
able to recover the value of investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of an
outside party. Investments in the Common Fund and variable rate demand notes are substanti